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Investment Manager’s statement
Dear Unitholder,

The pandemic swept the globe in March 2020 causing unprecedenied health and economic concerns.
Although policymakers had recourse to unprecedented stimulus measures to imit the econoric impact of
the Covid-12 pandemic, the global economy went into a recession during the calendar year 2020, Globally,
policy measures limited the negative spill-overs from the “real” economy to the {inancial markets.

In Mauritius, the closure of the domestic frontier presented significant headwinds to economic growth given
the country's dependence on the leisure and hospitality sector. With easing of restrictions and an
acceleration in the pace of vaccine roli-out, there was a positive shift in investor sentiment in 2021; the
SEMDEX prolonged its 2021 bull-run after the budget speech held in June 2021 which ameng others, laid
outi the strategy in terms of easing of travel restrictions and paving the way for a bounce back of the tourism
industry. Domestic vields increased significantly during that particular month.

Despite the uncertain conditions that prevailed during the year, we proved once again that we remain a
reliable pariner for all our stakeholders; our investment philosophy and processes ensured that our in-house
funds delivered solid returns relative to their pre-set objectives. The Fund continued raised its exposurs fo
cash and cash equivalent during the year, in anticipation of higher yieids, and also increased its aliocation
to “guality” domestic corporate bonds. Funds were deployed in government securities in 2021 following the
pick-up in yields.

Global economic activity has rebounded strongly since the enset of the pandemic but the environment
remains challenging amid the mutations of the Covid-19 virus, inflation concerns and Fed's potential
tapering of i1s assets purchase. Though the Fed has indicated that it will be in no rush 1o raise rates once
it starts its tapering, vieids are likely to trend upward in the iorthcoming months. Domestically, the
vaceination roll-out has besn positive but economic recovery remains highly dependent on the tourism
sector. Atthe same time, the weakening of the currency and global inflationary pressures from supply-chain
disruptions are likely to threaten domestic price siability, The governmeant has imposed price controls on
certain basic goods, which are likely to dampen short-term inflationary pressures. At monstary policy level,
the Bank of Mauritius has rejected bids on certain issuances, potentially indicating that vields may stabilize
at current levels in the near-term. At the same time, excess liquidity may renew its upward trend as
government securities mature. In the face of the market challenges, we remain focused on our funds' long-
term objectives and believe that our strategy will continue to benefit from the prevating market conditions.

We would like fo thank the management team and all the stakeholders for their contribution fowards
enhancing the value of our funds as well as the unitholders,for their confidence in us.

3BM Mauritius Asset Managjé]’s Ltd

September 2021
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investment Manager’'s Report

Performance commentary

For the financial year endad 30 June 2021, SBM Yisld Fund registerad a return of 10.2% against 2
benchmark performance of 4.7%. The net assets increased from MUR 179.0M o MUR 216.9M over FYZ21
with net asset value per unit (NAV) increasing from MUR 11.10 to MUR 11.87.

As an indication of the domestic bond market performence, the yisld on the 3Y Government honds
increased from 1.56% to 2.54%. On the global front. the Bioomberg Barclays Global Aggregate Index rose
from USD 528.93 to USD 540.81 registering a performance of 2.6% in USD terms..

ANNUALISED RETURN
SINCE
1 YEAR 3 YEAR 5 YEAR INCEPTION
SBM Yieid Fund (%) +10.2 +5.9 +5.8 +5.0
Benchmeark (%) +4.7 +B.4 =49 +57
EY 21 FY 20 FY 18 FY 18
SBM Yield Fund (%) +10.2 +4.6 +2.9 +7.3
Benchimark (%) +27 +8.5 +5.0 +2.5

The benchmark is a compesite of 80% 3Y GCM Bond and 40% Bloomberg Sarclays Gicbal Aggregate Bond index. Thz Bloomberg
Barclays Global Aggregate Bond index is 2 mezsure of giobal invesiment grade debt from twenty-four local currency markats.
Computation of benchmark return is basad on the observations as gt month-end end the blended performance of the benchmark
reflects monthly rebalaneing,

VALUE OF MUR 100,000 INVESTED SINCE INCEPTION

Past performarnice is not 2 reliable indicator of future performance and tnit prices may fluctuate with prevailing market
conditions znd current performance may be higher or jower than the performance cited. For more information on the
fund's objectives, risks, and strategy, please consult its Prospectus, Latest unit prices are available on the website:
https:/nbic.sbmgroup.muimamffinancizl-productsifunds-performance

The graph Mustrales the perfarmance of MUR 100.008 invested in the Fund &t inception. The growin of investmant amount zssumes
thet dividends, if any. are re-invested and does not include sales charge but takes into account the funaing expenssas of the Fund as
well a8 laxes and other deductions.



SBM YIELD FUND

MANAGER’S REPORT 2(i)
Positioning and strategy _ "
o, T =

SBM Yield Fund invests in global fixed income _A9SET ALLOCATION @ et sssets)
securities with 2 strategic allocation of 60% in o 30”15"20 39"0512']
domestic bonds and 40% in international fixed ~ Domestic fixed income... ..., 73.9 84.7
income instruments. International fixed income........ 10.2 9.5

Aliernative investment............ 1.7 0.0
During the year, the Fund maintained an Domestic equities... ... 0.7 0.0
overweight in domestic fixed income mainly on Cash & cash equivalents.... ... 12,8 55

account of expensive investment grade securities
amid historically tow policy rates and the potential
foreign exchange rate risk given our mid-iarm
views on the Mauritian rupes.

The overall exposure to domestic securities is
84.7% &s at 30 June 21 against 2 ceniral target
of 60%. During the year, the Fund focused on
building the demestic corporate bond segment
rether than foreign debt instruments te manage
patential  interest rate risks  from  rising
international yislds and reduce overall portfolio
duration. The Fund also raised exposure to
“guality” corporate bonds Forty Two Point Two
{GCR: AAA), CIM Financial Services Lid {Care:
MAU AA), Ascencia Limiied (Care: MAU A+) and
Gamma Civie Lid (Care: MAU AA-).

The domestic portiolio remains mainly invested in
Government of Mauritius (GoM) with an allocation
of 60.3% as at 30 June 21 against 62.0% for the
benchmark. Given that the GoM ars valued at
mark-to-market, some profit bookings were made
in June 2021 following rising yields in the
domastic market.

Subject to the issuances of the Bank of Mauritius
and evolution of excess liquidity, the Fund may
review the duration farget of the portfolio white it
anticipates mainiaining an  underweight in
internztional bonds amid expsctations of falling
bond prices.

GEOGRAPHICAL ALLOCATION (% nst zssets)

30/06/20  30/06/21%

Mauniius......o 80.5 60.0
MNorth America..................... 57 14.4
Central Asia... .o 37 0.0
EUrODE. . oo e e - 13.8
Asia Pacific.......ooooeve e, - 10.6
Others.......................... - 1.3
SECTOR ALLOCATION (% net assels)

Fund Index
Covernment of Maurifius. .. ... ... 80.3 &0.
Financial ..o oo, 237 2.1
Diversified.........ococoveen e, 7.5 -
Industrial. ... 2.8 0.4
Consumer Non-Cyclical........... 2.6 1.5
Technology.......coceeeeei . 1.1 0.4
Cemmunications... ....oovevve oo, 0.8 05
Censumer Cyclical... ... 0.8 0.5
UHIHES ..o e, 0.3 0.4
Energy... .o G.1 0.3
Basic Materials...........covies 0.1 0.1
Not Classified...................... - 33.8

TOP 5 HOLDINGS (% net )

30/06/20  30/08/21

Govt. of Mauritius Bond 08/02/39.. 10.3 8.4
Govt. of Mauritius Bond 25/01/28.. 82 8.2
Govt. of Mauritius Bond 12/06/22.. - 8.0
Govt, of Mauritius Bond 07/08/38.. 6.3 5.8
Govt. of Mauriiius Bond 11/05/38.. 57 5.3
TOTAL 30,5 34,7

TOP 5 CORPORATE HOLDINGS (% nat assets)

30/06/20  30/06/21

IBL |td Series 2 08/09/22.......... 5.8 47
CiM Financial Services Lid . 29
3HOTI25. e, -

Ciel 02/02/25. . e 2.9 2.4
Gamma Civic 18/08/31............. - 2.3
Ascencia Lid 29/12/30............... - 2.3

TOTAL 8.7 15.8
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Economic Review
Economy

The global economy contracted in calendar year 2020 with the growth rate estimated at -3.3%, after a series
of restrictions aimed at curbing the spread of the Covid-18 adversaly impacted sconomic activity. Reat GDP
growth among developed nations is estimated &t -4.6% with the US, Germany, France, ltaly and Spain
registering respective rates of -3.5%, -4.8%, -8.0%, -8.9% and -10.8%. Emerging and developing nations
posted -2.1%, dragged by Chinz (2.3%), India (-7.3%). Brazil (-4.%%) and Russiz (-3.0%) Supply-chain
disruptions significantly increased inflationary pressures in 2020 with globa! inflation sstimated at 3.2%.
Domesticzlly, sconomic activity was impacted by the national lockdown in March and siringent travel
resirictions; according fo Statistics Mauritius, real GDP declinaed by 14.9% in 2020. The contraction was
more severe in the tourism sector which adversely impacied foreign exchange flows, and the curren:
account defickt. The MUR weakened over the year. by 8.2% against the USD, standing at 40.15/USD in
June 2020 compared to 42 65/USD in June 2021,

REAL GDP GROWTH fivF estimates, % YoY)

Group/  Advanced Euro EM & Emerging Sub-  United China India Mauritius

Country Arez Developing Asia Saharan States

Africa
2020 46 8.5 -2.1 -C.9 -1.8 -3.5 2.3 7.3 -15.8
2021F} 58 4.6 8.3 7.5 3.4 7.0 8.1 g5 6.6
2022(F) 4.4 4.3 5,2 8.4 4.4 4,8 57 8.5 5.2

In 2021, economic conditions significantly improved with the continued support of policymzkers, the on-
going vaccination progress and sasing of restrictions in severa! economiss. The Internationai Monetary
Fund {IMF) revised upwards its 2021 real GDP growth projection for the US fo 7.0%, 0.6 percentage point
higher than its projections in April 2021, reflecting the relatively advanced pace of vaccines rollout and
additional fiscal stimulus. The Biden administration has proposed two multi-year spending packages
equivaient to 18% of 2021 GDP: the American Families Plan (USD 2T) and the American Jobs Pizn (USD

2.37), aimed at supporting vulnerable househcids, strengthening the recovery and improving lzbour
productivity.

Growth projections for 2021 in the Eurozone have been reviewed o 4.6% by the IMF, 0.3 percentage point
higher than its April 2021 World Economic Outlock (WEQ) projection. As confinement measures are
gradually liited, economic growth is projected to rebound strongly in the second half of 2021 boosted by
private consumption, substantial fiscal support and strong external demand. Germany. France, laly and
Spain, are projected to grow by 3.6%, 5.8%, 4.9% and 6.2%, respeciively.
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Economic Review (Cont’d)
Economy (Cont'd)

Real GDP growth in developing and emerging ecenomies is projected to ouipace advanced economies
with & forecast of 6.3% in 2021, against 8.7% in IMF’s Aprit 2021 forecast. The relatively higher projections
among emerging nations are likely to be ied by the strong rebounds in India and China, which are projected
to grow by 8.5% and 8.1%, respactively. Howsver, lack of access to vaccines and challenges in controiling
renswed waves of the pandemic are likely to dictate the growth path among those nations.

On the domestic economy, the IMF projects real GDP to grow by 6.6% in 20271 and 5.2% in 2022, The
recovery Is expectad to be driven by the construction and manuiacturing sectors alongside accommodation
and food service activitiss. Monetary policymakers are fikely to maintain the accommodative monetary
policy stance in the short tarm to support economic zctivity and cughion against the likely disruptive effects
of the second wave of Covid-19.

According to the July 2021 WEO, inflation rates in developed economiss and emerging market and
developing economies are estimated 10 be at 2.4% and 5.4% respectively. Higher inflation is expected in
some emerging markets and developing economies on account of elevated food prices. Inflation is
expected to retumn to iis pre-pandemic levels in most nations in 2022. In tha US, the PCE inflation rate is
expected to hover above 2% in the near term driven primarily by transitional factors, pent-up demand and
on-going supply-chain disruptions. Statements from central banks regarding oullook for monetary policy
remain kay in shaping inflation expactations
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Financial markets review
Equity markets

After hitting & 4-year low in March 2020 following the declaration of Covid-12 as & pandemic and
implementation of lockdown measures in several countries, markets recovered most of the losses by
August 2020, supported by unprecedented monetary and fiscal stimuli by palicymakers, globally. Near-zero
Fageral Funds rate, trillions of dollar of fiscal support and positive vaccine news pushed US eguities in
record territories during the first half of the financial year. Growth siocks outperformed the broader indices,
gided by technelogy and software stocks. During the second half of the year, rising infiation concerns raisag
10Y US yields which dented ths performance of growth stocks and the Nasdag witnessed a correction in
February 2021, nvestors rotated inio value and smaller caps, which outperformed the broader market up
to May. As an indication, the S&P 500 index regisiered +14.4% aver the pariod Jan-Jun 21 compared to
the 8&P 500 Value index and Russell 2000 index which posted +17.0%. Faliing yields towards the end of
the financial year and higher earnings expeciztions pushed key equity markets 1o record highs; overall, the
MSC! World index recorded +37.0% YoY.

In Mauritius, the SEMDEX did not track the recovery of global indices mainly on account of exacerbating
economic conditions, the uncertainty surrounding the full opening of borders and potential spillovers from
the tourism sector to other seclors. Following the budgetary measures in June and the announcement of
the reopening of borders, the SEMDEX posted relatively strong growth aided by tourism-related stocks. A

strong growth of +8.8% wes registered during the month of Junes 2021 only, driving & YoY rise of 12.2% in
the index

EQUITY INDEX PERFORMANCE % local currency)

Index 1M 3 5M T 1Y 3Y 3Y

S&P 300 +2.2 +8.2 +14.4 +14.4 +38.6 +58.1 +104.,8
MSCl World................... +1.4 +7.3 +12.2 +12.2 +37.0 +44.4 +82.5
MSCI Worid Small Cap.... +0.1 +4.6 +14.1 +14.1 +51.0 +38.0 +81.9
MSCl Europa......oven . +1.6 +5.4 +13.6 +13.6 +25.1 +17.2 +34.4
MSCIEM. ..o, -0.1 +4 4 +6.5 +B8.5 +38.1 +28.5 +64.8
MSCIAC Asia.............. 0.5 +2.2 +4.0 +4.0 +31.7 +25.3 +61.3
SEMDEX ..ol +8.8 +18.8 +13.1 +13.1 +12.2 -16.9 +8.4

DEMEX. ..ot +77 +23 4 +33.0 +33.0 +37.5 +18.6 +48.7

TOP INDEX LEADERS (% local currency)

Clobal equities 1Y Domestic equities 1Y
+51, T 12,
Appleldnc............... 12 LMtr(r::Eecs oup 8.7
g;‘;f“‘ ............ 344 Altes Limited...... ... 07
Teslane....oviiiiien +214.7 ClelLimited ...o.oooo i 48.6
Amazon.comine ... +24.7 SBM Holdings Ltd ................. +15.0
Alphabetinc-Class C +77.3 +39.7

Gamma CivicLid... ...,
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Financial markets review {Cont'd)
Bond markeis

The Berclays Global Aggregate Bond index registered USD returns of +2.6% during the financial year 2021.
During the $ecand and third quarters of FY21, the global bond market sold off following the global rollout of
vaccines, passage of the USD 1.9 wilion fiscal stimulus package in the US and higher inflationary
pressures. In the last guarier of FY21, however, global bonds rallied as markets shrugged off infiation
concemns and the rapid spread of the more contagious Delta variant threatened the global economic
recovery. Emerging market debt performed particularly well during the fourth quarter while inflation-
protected Treasury securities posted strong retumns amid higher inflation readings.

During the financial year, the Fed maintained its monthly asset purchase of USD 808n of Treasury
securities and USD 40Bn of morigage-backed securities while keeping the Fed Funds raie in the range of
0.0%-0.25%. It shifted to 2 more hawkish outlook in June 2024 with the Federal Oper: Market Commities
(FOMC) anticipating two interest-rate hikes by the end of 2023, Fester than expected vaccine rollout
combined with the large fiscal stimulus drove 10-year US Traasury yieid higher by 108 bps from 0.66% In
June 2020 o 1.74% in March 2021. However, US Treasuriss rallied over Q4:FY21 primarily due to concerns
over the spread of the Delta variant; with 10-year US Treasury vield tumbling to 1.47% in June 2021

The Europsan Central Bank {ECB) kept the interest rate unchanged on the main refinancing operations,
the margina! lending facility and the deposit facility at 0.00%, 0.25% and -0.50%, respectively. The
Governing Council conducted net purchases under the pandemic emergency purchase programme (FEPP)
at a significantly higher pace during the last quarter of FY21. Bond vields were generally on the uptrend
mainly on account of Europe's vaceine catch-up and ratification of the EU Covid Recovery Fund -
NextGeneraticnEU. The corresponding vields on 10-year German and Spanish bonds surged by 24 bps
and 3¢ bps 10 -0.21% and 0.41%. Conversely, vields on 10-year talian bang ticked tower in £Y 2021 from
1.26% to 0.82%; amid optimism that the newly appointad Prime Minister of italy, Mario Draghi, will push for
key siructural reforms,

Yields on the domestic bond market trended upward during the FY21 amid the shift in sentiment from the
pandemic-related shock, decresase in MUR excess liquidity and sovareign rating downgrade, On the
secondary market, yields on the 51D Treasury Bills increased Dy 27 bps to 1.01% over the year. Yields on
182D Treasury Bills and 384D Treasury Bills increased by 36 and 42 bps o reach 1.22% and 1.48%,
respectively. 3Y GOM Notes yield increased from 1.56% 1o 2.54% while 5Y GOM Bonds traded at 3.12%
ageinst 1.88% in June 2020, Long-term vields rose more aggressively with 10Y GOM Bond trading at 4.34%
as &t June 2021, equivalent to an increase of 186 bps. The yield on 15Y GOM bonds was also on the
upward trend standing af 4.76% against a praceding reading of 2.81%. The 20Y GOM Bond yields
increased from 3.05% to 5.14%.
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Financial markets review (Cant’d)
Bond markets {(Cont'd)
BOND INDEX PERFORMANCE (% local currency)
Index M 3M 6 YiD 1Y  3Y 5Y
Barclays Giobal Aggregaie 08 #1332 82 428 +132 <123
Bond........ ‘ ’
Barclays US Aggregate Band +07  +18 16 <18 03  +1698 +161
Sarciays US Govt Inflation-Linked Al
Maturities Index +0.7 +3.5 +1.8 +1.6 +*6.5 +21.58 +234
Barcizys High Yieid bond #02  +34 +21 421 4148 4210 +36.9
JP Morgen EMUIG Bond 304 07 31 B4 04 494 475
JF Morgan EM Bond 09 45 10 0 7.5 4226 4264
L7 SE Asian Broad $05 #1402 02 #41 219 +247
ONG. i,
MARKET YIELDS (4
Tenor United States Germany India China WMauritius
Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun-
21 20 21 20 21 20 21 20 21 20
81D 005 013 -087 -0.63 380 374 - - 101 074
182D 004 016 085 081 389 375  2.06 - 122 0.86
384D 008 015 086 -083 418 385 231 208 148  1.08
3Y 045 047 087 072 518 468 275 233 254 155
5Y 08 030 058 07 587 535 282 255 342  1.89
10Y 147 082 026 048 862 624 308 285 434 243
18Y 185 084 -001 031 6.88 652 - - 476  2.81
20Y 195 112 008 020 700 661 337 345 544 305

Commodity markets

The S&P GSCI index registered a USD performance of +57.4% over the financial year 2021, mainly led by
the rebound in oil prices from about USD 40/Bbl in the mid-2020 to above USD 7O/Bb! as at June 2021.
Brent and WTI prices rallied by more than 80% during FY21 mainly supporied by stronger demand
conditions amid easing of lockdown restrictions and supply measures from OPEC. Natural gas gained
srongly as demand ouipaced supply. Precisus metals registered mixed performances with Silver
advancing by +43.5% on the back of its dual precious metals ard industrial uses while Gold posted -0.6%.
Gold initially edged higher as investors hedgad against the rising inflation threat but the bull run came to an
end with the resurgence of the USD and strong economic data,
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Financial markets review (Cont’d)

Commodity markets (Cont'd)

COMNMODITIES
Jun-21 Jun-20 FY21 (% YoY)

WTI 73.4 e 27 +87.1
SIBBL e 347 3. :
Brent $/BbL......... L U VU 75.13 41.15 +82.6
Natural gas USD 3.68 175 +108.5
StmmBiu..

Copper8/0z.......coooe e, 420.65 271,35 +58.3
Silver Spot 3/0z . 26.13 18.21 +43.5
Cold Spot $IOZ... .ot 1,770.14 1.7806.98 -0.8
Forex

The U.8. Dollar Index (DXY) traded sideways over FY21 with the USD initially sirengthening on the tack
of stimulus and higher long-term rates but eventually lost ground against cther major currencies as longer
US yiglds eased. The weakening of the dollar was also attributable w© investors pricing in an early Fed
tightening while the inflation cutlook and higher ofl prices presented headwinds.

The euro appreciated against the US dollar, buoyed by easing Covid-19 rastrictions, rising consumer
coniidence and the vaccination programme. The pound sterling strengthened, backed by hopes that the
UK would ease its lockdown restrictions sooner than expected amid the fast vaccine rollaut. The pound
was aiso supparted by a post-Braxit frade deal with the EU.

Amaong Asian markets, the Japanese Yen depreciated against the doliar, unwinding an advance spurred
by demand for safe-haven assats during the pandemic. The acceleration in the vaceine rollout across the
world drove investors into riskier assets. The CNY strengthensd in FY21 driven by a broadening US dollar
weakness amid China's strong economic rebound. Robust exports growth resulted in & current account
surplus and supported the yuan. The indian rupee appreciated azgainst the US dollar amid the improved
risk appstits in the region. The strengthening of the INR was also aftributable to foreign inflows through FDI
and FPIL.

In Mauritius, the MUR depreciated by 6.2% YoY against the USD: the central bank soid USD 25M at 35
42.50/USD on 28 June 21 agzinst 2 sale of USD 25M at Rs 40.70/USD on 10 June 2. The cusrency
continued fo be under pressure amid the widening curren: account deficit and travel restrictions.

FOREX
Jun-21 Jun-20 FYZ21 (% YoY)

Dollarindex.............oc i 92.44 §7.3% -5.14
EUR-USD 1.19 1.12 <58
GBP-USD..... e e 1.38 1.24 +11.5
UBD-dPY L 111,11 107,83 +2.8
USD-CNY i) 6.45 7.07 -38
USDHINR e 74,33 75.51 -16

USD-MUR ..o 42,65 40.15 +6.2
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Market Qutloock

The market environment remains highly unceriain with the spread of the deltz variant and the rise in
infiationary pressures. International equity markets may be entering & phase of iransition as garnings,
economic growth and policy stimulus peak. High nflationary pressurss and an improving Izbour market
may result in the Fed tapering its menthly asset purchases in 2021, The (atest labour market data showed
a drop In the unemployment rate; 934,000 jobs were added during the month of July sgainst consensus
estimates of 870,000

With 10Y yields increasingly likely fo test the 1.60% - 1.70% range by the end of 2021, the Fund is likely to
maintzin an undenweight to this asset class, especially in 2 context of wesk MUR. Purchase of low-vielding
asseis denominated in foreign currencles may impact the medium- to long-term performances dua to
interest rate and re-investmen risks. The strategy will involve a relatively low duration while underweighting
the high-yield and emerging markets space amid potential tapsring.

The trajeciory of recovery in domestic economic zctivity in 2021 is raliant on tourism given its double digit
direct and indirect contributions to economic ouiput. So far, the policymakers have supporied the sector
through the moratoriums on ioans, Government Wage Assistance Scheme and lending from the Mauritius
Investment Corporation Lid. In &s iast budget, it was announced that as from October 1, there will not be
any eniry restriction on vacsinated travelers provided that their PCR tests are negative within 72 hours
before depariure. A prospective rebound in this secter's ouiput during tha upcoming pasak season is fikely
io ease pressure on the MUR and on the debt-to-GDP ratio.

Yietds tumbled in July after gaining significant grounds following the issuances of 20Y and 15Y GoM bonds
in June. 1tis expected that the Bank of Mauritius will maintain its accommedative monetary policy amid the
uncanainty surrounding the pick-up in economic activity. The pursuit of this policy is fikely to be supporied
by the relatively low reading of 2.6% for headiine infiation in July, according to BoM projections, domastic
inflation continues to be subject fo iransifory supply-side pressures and is forecast to stand at about 3.5%
for 2021. It is expected that domestic fixed income allocations will mainiain @ barbell strategy in managing
interest rate and re-investment risks, Subject to availability and credit spreads, the exposure to “quality”
rorperate credit will be increased in the portfolios.
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The Trustee and Manager of SBM Yield Fund (the Fund"} are pleased to submif their Corporate
Governance Repori for the year ended 30 June 2021, inclusive of other statutory disclosures.

INTRODUCTION

SBM Yield Fund was authorised by the Financial Services Commission under the Unit Trust Act, 1989 as
amended, and established as 2 Unit Trust by 2 Trust Deed of the SBM |avestment Unit Trust dated 5 Juna
2008 between SBM Mauritivs Asset (The Manager) snd DTOS Trustees Lig (The Trusles) and
subsequently governad by the Supplemental Deeds No. 1 dated 30 November 2012 and No. 3 dated 14
November 2013. It is an open-ended Collective Invesiment Scheme established undar Section 3 of the Unit
Trust Act, 1988, authorised and reguleted under the Trust Act, 2001, Securities Act, 2005 and the Securities

(Collective Investment Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Reguletion, 2008 by the Financial Services
Commission.

The Fund's objective is to offer a portfolio of investment to individual and corporate investars that aims to
achisve the maximum return comparable {o that of 2 standard fixed income portfoiio whilst providing regular
income.

The Fund is a public interest entity as defined under the Financial Reperting Act 2004,

INTRODUCTION

SBM Yield Fund's corporate governance framework includes iis Trustee, Investment Commitee, the
Manager, the board of the Manager, Unitholders, and other stakeholders.

The organisation’s structure is as follows:

- Mr. Shailendrasingh Sreekesssoon
Lid - Mr. Roshan Ramaly

- Mrs. Reedhee Bhuttoo

- Mr. John Wallace Mcllraith

1
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t
T
!
i
1
I
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Unit Holders
[ Board of Directors of SBMMAM K
- Mr. Plerre d'Unienvilie
DTOS Trustees - Mr. Alain Eric Koc Khen Heong Venpin

J

N N
SBM Investment | > SBM Yield Fund I _______ SBM Mauritius Asset
Unit Trust F Managers Lid
(IISBMMAM)I)

investment Commities of SBMMAM

- Mr. Alain Eric Koo Khen Heong Venpin

- Mr. Roshan Ramoly

- Mr. Richard Robinson

- Mr. Edward Vaughan Heberden
- Mr. Assad Abduillatiff
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INTRODUCTION (CONTINUED)

The Trustee, the Manager and the board of the Manager are fully committed to achisving and sustaining
the highest stendards of corporate governance with the aim of maximising long<term value creation for the
Unitholders of the Fund and all the stakeholders =t large. Much emphasis is on the conduct of business
practices that display characteristics of good corporate governarice namely discisline, transparency.
independence, intsgrity, accouniability, social responsibility. professionalism, and fairness.

In addition, the Trustee, the Manager, and the board of the Manager of the Fund continuously review the
implications of corporate governance principles and practices in light of their experience, regulatory
reguirements and investor expectations. They hereby conflrm that the Fund, as set out in this report, has
strived to comply in zll material aspecis with the foliowing legal and regulatory framework:

- Trusi deed and subsequent Supplemenial Deeds;

- Terms of reference of the Trustes and sub-committee;

- The Netional Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius 2018 (the “Code™);

- The Trust Act, 200%;

- The Sscurities Act, 2005; and

- The Securities (Collective Investment Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Regulations, 2008,

The main roles as described under Principle 2, 3 and 4 of the Cade of Corporate Governance are fulfilied
by the Bozrd of the Managear.

The Board of the Manager has attempted to create the right baiance and composition 1o better meet the
objectives of the organisation, The Board is unitary and comprises of six Direstors, of which four are
Independent and two are Executive Directors. The Independent Directors do not have any relationship with
the majority Sharsholders, therefore a sufficient number of directors do not have any relationship with the

organisation, The Board is led by Mr, Pierre Marrier d'Unienville, 2nd all Board members currently reside
in Mauriijus.

Trere exists 2 transparent procedurs in place regarding the appointmernt of prospeciive Directors which is
made in accordance with the skilis, knowledge 2nd expertise required on the Board. The re-slection of
Direciors is made on an annuel basis at the Annual Meeting of Sharehoiders. New Board membars are

provided with an induction pack to provide them with sufficient knowledge znd understanding of the Fund's
business.

All Board membars are fuily apprised of their fiduciary duties as laid out in the Companies Act 2001,

TRUBT DEED AND SUPPLEMENTAL DEEDS

The Trust Deed and subsequent Supplemental Deeds of the Fund comply with the provisions of the Trust
Act, 2001, The Securities Act, 2005 and The Securities {Collzctive Invasiment Schemes and Closed-end

Funds} Regulations, 2008. The Deed is zvailable upon written reguest to the Manager at the Registered
Office of the Fund,

Salient features of the documeants are:

Ne Unitholder shall be entitled to:

= require the transfer to him of any of the assets comprised in the Fund;

= interfere with or question the exercise or non-exercise by the Trustee or the Manager of the rights
and powers of the Trustee end the Manager in their dealings with the Fund or its assets or any part
thereof;

¢ attend meetings whether as Unithaiders or otherwise, or to vote or to take part in or consent to any
action concerning any property of any entity in which the Fund holds an interest;
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TRUST DEED AND SUPPLEMENTAL DEEDS (CONTINUED)

A Unitholder is entitled to any distribution as approved and declared by the Manager as per provisions of
the Trust Deed.

THE TRUSTEE AND THE MANAGER
Corporate Profile of the Trustee — DTOS Trustess Lid

DTOS Trustees Lid is 2 private company incorporated in Mauritius on 237 May 2003. DTOS Trustees Lid
is & wholly owned subsidiary of DTCS Ltd and is duly licensed by ths Finzncial Services Commission io act
as a guzlified trustee. It offers & complete and comprehensive range of trust services including irust
formation / migration, corporate trustesship, advice on tax. reguletory and statutory metters, accounting,
administration. and tax filings, where raguired,

Rotle of the Trustee

The Trustee has been appointed in order to ensure that the zfiairs of the Fund are being managed and
administered for the benefit of the Unitholders and to their best interests along the following principles:

° International best standards and reguiatory compliance

Cvarseeing the conduct of the Fund's business and menitoring whather the business is being properly
managed at all levels according to international best standards and in accordance to provisions of its
regulaiory regime:

= Accounts and risk management
Reviewing and, where appropriate, approving fisk policy. financial statements, annual budgeis, business
plans and internal reporis.

= Supervision of fund intermediaries
Supervising the fund intermediaries in their defivery of services to the Eund and ensure that such delivery
is done diligently and creates most value for the Unitholders of the Fund.

Corporate Profile of the Manager — SBN MAM

SBM Mauritius Asset Managers Lid ("SBM MAM") is licensed and regulated by the Financial Services
Comrmission of Mauritius and holds 2 CiS Manager license. It is 100% owned by SBM Capital Markets Lid.
SBM MAM offers investment manegement services across 2 number of asset ciasses including equities,
fixed income, private and altemative investments.

Role of the Manager and its obligations

The Manager is appointed by the Trustee and under the supervision of the Trustee, manages and
administers the Func for the benefit of the Unitholders of the Fund in accordance with the Trust Deed and
Prospacius of the Fund.

lts obfigations cover but are not resiricted to the following:

* Conduct of Business

it shall conduct its business in a proper and efficient manner to ensure that any underiaking in the affairs

of the Fund is carried out in a proper, sthical, and efficient manner,

¢ Supervision of assets
The Manager shall manage and supervise all assets of the Fund to the best interast of the Unitholders.
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THE TRUSTEE AND THE MANAGER (CONTINUED)
Role of the Manager and its obligations {continued)

* Trade in units of the Fund ‘
[t shall sell and issue units of the Fund in accordance to the provisions of the Trust Deed and Prospectus
and in so doing shall ensure thet the interests of unit-holders are protected st all times.

THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Trust Deed provides for the establishment of an Investmeant Committee composed of at least 3 persons
and not more than 8 persons. The main purpose of the commitiee is 1o issue guidelines and advise ths
Manager on investments.

Currently, the Committee is composed of 5 members and mests on a quarterly basis. it reviews the
periormance of the Fund, ensures that the investmant strategy complies with the provisions of the Trust
Deed and Prospectus.

Managing Conflict of Interest and Related Party Transactions

The Fund adheras to the Group Conflict of interest and Related Party Transactions policy to assist the
Board of the Trustee and Manager in identifying and disclosing actual and potential conflicts and help
ensure the avoidance of conflicts of interest, where necessary.

For the related party transaction, piease refer to Note 14 1o the Financial Siatements.
Information, information technology and information security policy

The Trustes and Manager confirm that information, information technology and information security policy
exist within the Group.

RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
RISK MANAGEMENT

Tha Manager fs responsible for ihe risk management practice and procedures in place within the operating
structure of the Fund for risk management. The Manager also defines the overall strategy for risk {olerance
and is responsible for the design, implementation 2nd reviaw of a risk management framework, processas
and day-to-day management of risk as performed by the intermediaries and service providers of the Fund.
Part of the responsibllity to monitor the framework and processes has been delegated io the Invesiment
Commitize which conducts reviews on a quarierly basis.

The Fund's policy on risk management encompasses all business risks including operational, technology,
business continuity, financial, compliance and reputational risks which could influence the zchievemant of
the Fund’s objectives. I context, a due diligence exarcise is undertzken in collzbaration with nominated
intermediaries to ensurs that they have the capzbility 1o commit on the implementation of appropriate
customised procedures and controls for the purpose of the Fund.

The risk management mechanisms in place include:

= Asystem for the ongoing ideniification and assessment of risk:

= Development of strategies in respect of risk and definition of acceptable and non-acceptable levels of
risk;
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RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)}

s The communication of sisk managemaent policies across the multiple parties and functionaries involved
in the processes:

» The impiementation of a documented system of processes with aopropriate controls and approval
mechanism that clossly align the cantrol effort to the nature and importance of the risk;

o Processes to reduce or mitigale identified risks and contain them within the lavels of iolerence defined
and agread by the Board of the Maneger:

= Compliance reports are prepared and presented to the board of the Manager on 2 guarterly basis; and

o Internal audit functions sxist at the level of the Manager and Fund Administrator whereby the processes
periaining to the aiiairs of the Fund sre scrutinised and underge audit reviews. Quarterly reports are
prepared and presented to the boards of the Manager and Fund Administrator,

Risk exposurs of the Fund falls within the following arsas or risk:

Operational risks

Operational risk is defined as risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from inadeguate or failed internal
process, people, and systems or from exiernal events, Assets of the Fund are properly safeguarded, and
reporting infrastructures are adequate and effective for imely and accurate data collection.

Cempliance risks

Compliznce risk is defined 23 risk of loss from failure to comply with regulations governing the conduct of
an organisation’s business. It is 2 compesite risk made up of risk of legai or regulatory sanctions, financial
loss, or loss of repuiation.

Technology risks

Technology risks include hardware and software failures, system development and infrastructure issues.
To varying degress. the Fund is reliant upon certain technologies and systems for the smooth and efficient
running of its operations. Distuption to these technologies could adversely affect its efficiency.

Business continuity risks
This relates to losses from failed transaction processing and process management.

Reputstional risks

This relaies to losses due to unintentional or negligent failure to meet 2 professional obligation to specific
clients or from the nature or dasign of a product.

Financial risks
The primary sources of financial risks faced by the Fund are risks inherent to its investment activities.
Investment values and returns are dependant on the performance of financial marksts and may adversely

affect the Fund's financial results. The financizl risks faced by the Fund and managemaent of these risks are
further discussed in the notes to the financial statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Manager and the board of the Manager acknowledge their responsibility for interna! control and wark
clasely together and with the Fund Administrator to put in place a system of internal controls which is
designed fe provide the Trustee with reasonable assurance that the assets are safeguarded; that operations
are carried out effectively and efficiently; that the financizl controls are reliable and in compliance with

applicable laws and regulztions and that material frauds and other irregularities are sither prevented or
detecied within a rezsonable time.
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RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)
INTERNAL COMTROL (CONTINUED)

The Manager and Fund Administrator prepare compliance and risk monitoring reporis that are submitied
ic ihe Investment Commitiee and Board of the Manager on a quarterly basis for their review, following
which recommendations are made fo the Manager on en on-going basis. Prevantive and corrective actions
are then duly implemented to address intemal control deficiencies ard opporiunities for improving the
systems.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In arder fo enhance good governance and transparency, the Group has & Whistleblowing policy. The main
aims of the policy are to provide an avenue for raising concerns ralated to fraud, corruption, and any other
misconduct. The policy addresses the following:

= Protection of and Remedies for Whistle blowers and Complainants:
e Channels and Procedures;
= Hoiline, Email and PO Box facilities

REPORTING WITH INTEGRITY

The Manager is required to ensure that adequate accounting recosds are maintained so 2s to discloss =t
any time, and with reasonable adequacy. the financial position of the Fund. The Manager is also responsibie
tor taking reascnable steps to safeguard the assets of the Fund ‘o prevent and detect fraud and other
irreguiarities.

The Manager must present financial statermesnts for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of
the affairs of the Fund, and the results for that period, In preparing such financial statements, the Manager
is reguired to:

«  select suitable accounting policies and apply them on z consistent basis using reasonable and prudent
judgment

= state whether or not the Trust Act, 1989, the Trust Act, 2001 and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) have been adhered to and explain material departures thereto

+  use the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate.

The Manager acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and the responsibility of external auditors to report on these financial statements.
The Manager is rasponsible for ensuring the maintenance of adequate accounting records and an effective
system of internal controls and risk management and the seleciion of apporopriate eccounting policies.

Nothing has come to the Manager's attention, to indicate any material breakdown in the functioning of the
internal controls and systems during the period under review, which could have & material impact on the
business. The financial statements are prepared from the accouniing records cn the basis of consistent
use of appropriaie accounting records supported by reasonabie and prudent judgmsnts and estimates that
fairly present the state of affairs of the Fund.

The financial statements have been prepared on & going concern basis and there is no reason to belisve
that the Fund wilt not continue as 2 going concern in the next financial year.
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REPORTING WITH INTEGRITY (CONTINUED}

The Manager confirms that in preparing the financial statements, it has:

seiected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

followed the International Financial Reporting Standards

prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis

adhered fo the Code of Corporate Governance in all material aspects and reasons have besn provided
or nen-compliance.

5 9 & © &

The Manager is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy &t any time the financial position of the Fund and to enable them fo ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Trust Act 1988, the Trust Act 2007, the Securities Act 2005, the Sacurities
{Collective Invesiment Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Reguiations 2008 and have been prepared in
accordance with the International Reporting Standards. The Manager is also responsibla for safeguarding
the assets of the Fund and hence for taking reasoneabls steps for the prevention and datection of fraud and
cther irragularitias.

The Annual report is published in full on the website of the Manager of the Fund.
AUDET
Internal Audit

The Non-Banking Financial cluster (NBFC") of the SBM Group has its own permanent Internal Audit
function reporting to the Risk Committee of SBM (NBFC) Holdings Ltd, the holding Company of NBFC. The
internal zudit team comprises of three fully qualified accountents. The internal auditors provide assurance
about the effectivenass of the risk management and control processes in place and they maintain their
independence by reporting to the Risk Commitiee. The Head of Intemal Audit has regular access to the
Trustee and Manager and the chairperson of the Risk Committee, There were no resirictions on access by
the internal auditors to records or members of the management team.

The Audit and Risk Committess of NBFC are chaired by 2 Gharered Accountant and the Committee
comprises of independent members with more than 30 vears’ experience in the Financial Services industry.
The Risk Commiitees reviews and approves Internal Audits plen and resources and evaluates the
etfectiveness of the funciion. The Audit and Risk Committees ensure that & consistent risk-based zudit
methodology is applied. The audit reports are thereafier tabled at the Commities and the findings and
methodologies are reviewed and discussed by the Risk Committee.

As the third line of defense, the rofe of internal audit is to provide independent, objective assurange services
designed to zdd value and improve NBFC entities’ operations. Audils are carried out o review the
adequacy and effeciiveness of the group's system of iniernal controls, as per the Board approved risk-
based audit plan, In conducting reviews, the Internal Auditors are alert to indicators of frauvd and
opportunities that could allow fraud, such as control weaknssses. In doing s, the Internal Auditors obtain
reasonable assurance that business objeciives for the process under review are being achieved and
material contro deficiencies are datsctzd. Upon completion of each review, 2 formal report detailing the
audi findings and the appropriate recommendations are issced to the chairperson of Risk Commiltee and
the Chief Executive Ofiicer. Any deviation in policies and non-performance of internal conirols are duly
reporied and discussed at Risk Comittee level. Corrective actions ars promptly taken and regular foliow
ups as well s reporting performed by internal Audit until complete resolution.
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AUDIT (CONTINUED)
External Audit

Deleitte was appoinied as statviory auditors of the Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2021, The
Trustee and Manager assess and review on a regular basis the independence of the external auditor,

The fees paid to the external auditors for audit servicas were MUR 128,500 (2020: MUR 115,000). The
exiernzl auditors did not provide any non-audit services during the vear under review,

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS

SHAREHOLDING

Holding Structure — 30 June 2021

As at 30 June 2021, the Fund had issued 18,579,486.71 unifs for 2 total fund size of MUR 216,869,195,
The NAV per unit of the Fund as at 30 June 2021 was MUR 11.87.

The NAV per umt for the past five years are as follows:

Yaar R A NAV Der: umt
June 2017 10.47
June 20413 10.87
June 2018 10.86
June 2020 11.10
June 2021 11.87

Unit-holders’ Relations and Communication

Unitholders are strongly encouragﬂd to visit the website of the Manager o remain updated on the Fund's
initiztives/projects, goals, and prices,

Analysis of ownership

Thg Fund had £50 Unitholders as at 30 June 2021. A breakdown of the calegory of Unitholders and the
unit ownership as af 30 June 2021 are set out below:
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDING (CONTINUED)

Market Value No of Clients No of Units % Holding
0-58.299 148 288,407.65 1.55%
£0,000 - 89,998 32 228,449 44 1.23%
100.000 - 124,988 34 327,822.47 1.76%
125.000 - 199,998 114 1.440,825.03 7.75%
200,000 - 485,899 46 1.157.631.61 6.23%
500,000 - 988,298 30 1,613,645.18 8.58%
1M - 1,489,985 23 2,188,321.01 11.83%
1.5M - 1,998,998 5 711.691.49 3.83%
2M - 2,895,995 12 2,487.946.36 13.39%
3M - 5,299,988 2 547 ,403.21 2.95%
M - 10M 1 539,735.23 2.91%
10M-20 M 2 2,565,428.02 13.81%
ABCVE 20 M g 4,472,382.00 24.07%
T0TAL 450 18,579,486.71 100.00%

Unit-holders’ Agreement

To the best knowiedge of the Manager and Trustes. there has besn no such agreement with any of its

Unitholders for tha year under review.

Unit-holders’ Calendar

The Fund has planned the following forthcoming events:

Reporting date

30 June 2021

Publication of year end resulis

Within 90 days from end of 30 June 2027

Declaration of dividend

| Within 3 months from end of 30 Juns 2021

Dividend Policy

The objective of the Fund is to pay out all income available for distribution on z quarterly basis, In that
respect, income excludes capital gains, both reatised and unrealised. While fixing the dividend raie, the
Trustee and Manager alsc take into account other considerations that might affect the economic interests
and proper long-term running of the Fund,

OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

The following agreements have been spproved by the Trustee and Manager and are still effective as af end
of the financial year 2020-2021:

e Cusiody Agreement with the SBM Bank {(Mauritius) Limited.
= Administration Agreement with SBM Fund Services Lid.
s Fund Management Agreement with SBM Mauriiius Asset Managers Ltd.
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Employee Share Option Scheme
The Fund has no share option plans.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The Fund has subscribed to a Directors and Officers Lisbility Insurance policy in respect of lega! aciions or
iiability which may arise against its Trustee, Manager, and officers. The cover does not provide insurance
against fraudutent, malicious, or wilfu! acts or omissions.

Ethics and Business Cenduct

Under reguiatory suparvision of the Financial Services Commission, all officers and agenis of the Fund are
expected to maintzin & high leval of ethics in their behaviour and business transactions. The transectons
of tha Fund are carried out as per its Manager's and Fund Administrator’s Code of Business Conduct anad
Ethics, appiicable to afl direct and indirect employees who deal with the matiers of the Fund.

The Fund is involved in the prevision of services and iis operations do not materially impact eon the
environmen. investing strategies inciude investment in sound, ethical and environmantal fdendly entitids.
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i

Trusiee’s and Manager's Responsibilities In respect of the Financiz| Statements i

The Trustee and Manager are required to ensure that adequete accounting racords are maintained so as
tc disciose at any time, and with reasonable adeguacy, the finangial pestiion of the Fund. They zre aiso
responsible for taking rezsonsble steps o safeguard the assets of the Fund to prevert and detect fraud
and ciher irsgulariies.

They mus: present finzncial statemenis Sor each financial yaar, which give a true and fair view of the affairs
of the Fund, and the results for that peried. In preparing such financial statements, they are required o

- select suiteble acoounting policies and apply them on 2 consistent basis using rezsenable and prudent
judgment

- state whether or not the Trust Act, 19389, the Trust Acl, 2001 and Internations! Financial Reperiing
Standards {IFRS) have been adhered to and explain materia! departures thereto

- use the going concerm 2asis uniess it is inappropriate.

The Manager acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the preparation of the financial statemenis in
accordance with IFRE and the responsibility of external auditors o report on these financial statements.
Tre Manager is responsibie for ensuring the maintenance of adequate accounting records and an effective
system of internal controls risk management and the selection of appropriate accouniing policies.

Nething has coms o the Trusiee's and Manager's attantion, 10 indicate any material breakdown in the
functioning of the intemal controls and systems during the period under raview, which could heve & materia
impact on the business. The financial starements are prepared from the acocounting records on the basis of
censistent use of appropriate accouniing records supported by rezsenable and prudent judgments and
estimates that falrly present the state of afalrs of the Fund.

The financial stetements have been prepared on a going concern basis and ihere is no reason to believe
that the Fund will not continue s a going concarn in the next financial VE&T.
The Trustee snd Manager confirm that in preparing the financiza! statements, they have:

- selected suitabie accounting policies and epplied them consisiently
- made judgments and estimates that ars reasonable and prudent

- followed the Internationat Financial Reporting Standards

- prepared the financial statements on the going concers basis

- edhered t¢ the Code of Corporate Governance in alt material aspects and reasons have been provided
for non-sompliznca.

The Trustee and Manager are responsible for keeping proper acsounting records, which disclose with
reasonzble accurecy at any Ume the financial position of the Fund anc o enable them to ensure that the
fnancial statements camply with the Trust Act, 1989, the Trust Act, 2001, the Securilies Act, 2008, the
Securities (Collective Invesimen: Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Regulations, 2008 and have been
prepared in acgordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Fund and hence for taking reasenable steps for the pravention an[d detzcrion

of freud and gibec irregulzrities. !
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TATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

{Section 75 (3) of the Financial Reporting Act)

Mamz of PIE: The SBWM Yield Fund
Reporting Period: Year ended 30 June 2021

We, the Trusiee and Manager of the SBM Yield Fund {the "Fund") confirm that to the best of our knowledze,
the Fund has complied with mest of its obligation and requirements under the Code of Corporate
Governance axcept for Principiz 2, 3 and 4 of the Code of Corporate Governance.

The reason for non-compliancs is that the Fund is sat-up a3 a Trust and not a company. In this context, it
has ne board of direciors, no board commiliees, and no company secretary.

However, the main roles as describad under Principle 2, 3 and 4 of the Code of Corporate Governance ars

fulfiiled by the Board of the Manzger, SBM Mauritius Assei Managers Ltd, 2s described above.

On behalf of the Trustes and Managsr
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7th-8th fioor, Standard Chartered Tower
19-21 Bank Street

Cybercity
Ebeéne 72201
Mauriti
Independent auditor’s report to the Members of aurtius
SBM Yield Fund 4

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SBM Yield Fund {the “Fund”) set out on pages 6 to 41, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in net assets and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statemenits, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at 30
June 2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and comply with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and the Financial
Reporting Act 2004.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standard Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards} (the “IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The Trustee and the Manager are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Corporate
Information, the Manager’s Report, and the corporate governance report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is @ material misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Corporate Governaonce Report

Our responsibility under the Financial Reporting Act 2004 is to report on the compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance disclosed in the annual report and assess the explanations given for non-compliance with any requirement of the
Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate governance in the annual report, the Public interest Entity
has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financial Reporting Act 2004, complied with the requirements of the Code.

Responsibilities of trustee and manager for the Financial Statements

The Trustee and the Manager are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and they are also responsible for such Internal control as the
Trustee and the Manager determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustee and the Manager are responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Trustee and the Manager either intend to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Trustee and the Manager are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustee and the manager’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001

In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:

we have no relationship with, or interest in, the Fund other than in our capacity as auditor and tax advisor;

we have obtained all information and explanations that we have required; and

in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Fund as far as appears from our examination of
those records.

Use of this report

This report is made solely to the Fund’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 205 of the Mauritius Companies
Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

OL/d.\__

Deloitte LLK &R Hee, FCCA
Chartered Accountants Licensed by FRC
20 September 2021



SERM YIELD FUND
STATEMERNT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 6.
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Notes 2021 2020
MUR MUR
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivzlenis 12,718,239 234724174
Other recsivebles & 34,397 33,806

Financiai assetls at fair value through ofrer comprehensive
income

~1

60,631,822 37,511,380

Financial assels &t fair vaiue through profit or loss 8 113,346,460 -
Financial assets ai amortised cost 8 31,020,229 115,428,785
TOTAL ASSETS 217,743,247 179,547,465
LIABILITIES
Other payables 12 550,447 518,137
incoms {ax liability 13z} 293,605 30,760
TOTAL LIABILITIES 874,052 543,897
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE UNITS
Redesmable units 5(e) 196,518,386 167,290,921
Relained samings 1,228,124 5,756,244
Fair valug raserve 7,631,856 5,738,830
Other reservs 11.480,818 230,873
5 216,869,195 178,288,568
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 217743247 178,547 465

Signed on behalf of tha Manag

The notes on pages 10 1o 41 form part of these financial statements.



SBM YIELD FUND

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 7.
Notes 2021 2020
MUR MUR
INCOME
Dividend income 16 175,444 236,502
Interest income at EIR ig 2,483,822 7,638,438
Interest incomz on financial assets at FVTPL 16 5,932,384 -
Net gain on finencial assets held at FVTPL 8 11,225,274 -
Foreign exchange gain 34,672 20,025
QOther incoma - 8,310
19,851,578 8,104,275
FUND EXPENSES
Manager's fees 17 1,820,438 1,418,662
Registry fess 19 214,170 166,804
Administrator's fees 20 321,254 250,352
Trusiee's fass 18 224,251 148,848
Custodian fees 22 128,237 158,023
Auditor's fees 119,375 125,378
Legal & professional fees 53,001 72,238
Sundry expenses 67,658 8,882
Expected credit josses 10 (8,103} {80,378}
Provision no ionger required written back - {411,824}
2,950,282 1,857,887
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 16,801,204 5,246,388
Tax (expense) fincome 13{b) (305,030} 35,1306
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 16,598,264 8,281,524
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
liems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net gain on financial assets held at FVOC] 7 1,692,026 1,258,242
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE UNITS 18,488,290 7,540,766

The nctes on pages 10 to 41 form part of these financial statements.




SBM YIELD FUND

STATEWENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 3.
Non-distributable income
Issued Retained Fair value Other
units earnings reserve reserve Total
MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR

As et 1 July 2048 169.085,422 3,567,602 4,480,588 210,848 177,354,450
issue of units 27,038,868 - - - 27.039.,868
Redemption of uniis (25,844,369) - - - {28,544,3569)
Distribution paid to
unitholders - {4,082,157} - - (4.002,157)
Change in net assets
attrihutable to holders of
redeemable units for the

sar - £,281,524 1,258,242 - 7.540,765
Transfer of undistribuiabie -
income* (20,025} - 20,025 -
As zt 30 Jung 2020 167,290,921 5,736,944 5,739,830 230.873 178,998,568
As at 1 July 2020 167,280,821 5,736,944 5,738,330 230,873 178,998,568
issue of units 54,954,523 - - - 54,854,523
Redemption of units (25,727,048) - - - {25,727,048)
Distribution paid to
unitholders (Note 23) - {9,845,138) - - {9,845,138)
Change in net assets
attributable to holders of
redeemable units for the
year - 16,586,264 1,882,026 - 18,488,290
Transfer of
undistributable income* - {11,259,348) - 11,269,946 -
As at 30 June 2021 196,518,396 1,228,124 7,631,856 11,490,319 216,868,185

*Note:

As per the Fund's prospecius, capitat gains arising from changes in the value of investments, both realised
and unrealised are credited fo non-distributeble reserve and shall not be available for distribuiion as
dividends. Capital losses arising from changes in the value of investments will be debiled to fair value

reserve and shall not be offset against income received. All other undistributa

are transferred fo other reserve.

The notes on pages 10 o 41 form part of these financial statemenis.

ble income and expenses



SBM YIELD FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 8,
2021 2020
Notes MUR MUR

CASH FLOWS FROWN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 16,801,284 6,246,388
Adjustments for:
Bividend income 16 {175,444) {236,502)
Interest income i6 {8,416,136} {7,838,438)
Net gain on financial assets held at FVTPL (10,447,451) -
Foreign Exchange gain {34,672} {20,025}
Expected credit losses 10 {§,103) {80,376}
Operating loss before working capital changes {2,180,562) {1,928,953)
(Increase)l decrease in other receivables {178) 54,331
Increase/ (decrease) in other payables 62,310 (368,100)
Purchase of financiai assets at FVOCH 7 (19,003,922) (5,996,501}
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL 8 {17,828,920) -
Purchase of financiai assets &t emortised cost ) {16,000,000) (3.000,000)
Proceeds from disposal of equity financial assats at FVOC] 7 1,068,667 24,928 802
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL g 16,233,880 -
Maturity of debts held 2t amortised cost g - 5,000,000
interest received 7,373,267 7842275
Dividend received 175,131 293,348
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations {30,102,327) 26,825,303
Taxation paid 13{a)} {42,185) {430,575)
Net cash {used in)igenerated from operating activities

{30,144,512) 26,354,728
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
issue of units 54,654,523 27,039,868
Redemption of units (25,727,048)  (28,844,389)
Distributions to unitholders {9,845,138) (4,002,157}
Net cash generated from/{used in} financing activities

18,382,337 {5,896,5658)
Net (decrease)lincrease in cash and cash equivalents

{10,762,175) - 20,488,070
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 23,472,414 2,974,344
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear 412,710,238 23472414

The notes on pages 10 1o 41 form pari of these financial statemeants.




SBM YIELD FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 10.

1.

LEGAL FORM AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

SBM Yield Fund (‘the Fund") was authorised by the Minister and approved by the Financial
Services Commission under the Unit Trust Act 1988 (repealed and replaced by Trust Act 2001}
and estzblished as & Unit Trust by & Trust Deed dated 5 June 2006 between SBM Mauritius
Asset Managers Ltd ("The Manager”) and DTOS Trustees Lid {"The Trusige").

The Fund's objective is to provide regular income and maximise retums on 2 long term basis for
the benefit of the unitholders.

The Trust's application made further to the transitional provisions set out under Section 160 of
the Securities Act 2005, it has been authorised io operate as 2 Collective Invesiment Scheme
under Section 97 of the Securities Act 2005.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

In the current year, the Fund has applied all new and revised standard and interpretations
isstied by the International Accounting Standards Soard (*IASBE”) and the International Financial
Reporting Interpratations Commitiee (IFRIC") of the IASB that zre relevant to Its operations and
effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 July 2020.

21 New and Revised Standards and Interpretations fssued
{a) Standards and amendments o existing standards effective 1 July 2020

The foliowing relevant revised standard has been applied in these financial
statements. Their applications have not had any material impact on the amounis
reported for current and prior years.

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the
dafinition of material

IAS S Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Esfimates and Errors -
Amendments regarding the definition of materia

1AS 38 Financial instruments: Recognition and Meassurement - Amendments
regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the IROR raform

IFRS 7 Financial Instrumenis: Disclosures - Amendments regarding pre-
replacement issues in the contaxt of the IBOR reform

IFRS 8 Financisl Instruments - Amendments regarding pre-replacement issuss

in the context of IBOR reform
Conceptual Arendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, 1AS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34,
Framework 1AS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 1o
update those pronouncements with regards to refzrences to and quetes
from the framework or o indicate whare they refer to a different version
of the Conceptuai Framework

(&) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 July 2020 and have
Al the deie of authorisation of these financial staternents, the follawing relevant new

and revised Standards were in issue buf effsctive on annual periods beginning on or
afler the respective dates as indicated:

IAS 1 Preseniation of Financial Statemenis - Amendments regarding the
classiiication of liabilities (effective 1 January 2023)



SBM YIELD FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 1.

2.

3.1

3.2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

(CONTINUED)

2.1 New and Revised Standards and Interpretations Issued {continuedd

(b} New standards. amendments and interpretations effective after 1 July 2020 and have
not been early adoplted {continued)

IAS 1

IAS 8

IAS 12

1AS 38

IFRS 7

IFRS 8

iFRES ¢

Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the
disclosure of accounting policies (effective 1 January 2023)

Accounting Policies, Chenges in Accouniing Estimates znd Error -
Amendments regarding the definition of accounting esfimates (1 January
2023

Incoms taxes - Amendmenis regarding deferred tax on lesses ang
decommissioning obligations {effective 1 January 2023)

Financial Instrumeants: Recognition znd Measurement - Amendments
regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform
(effective 1 January 2021)

Financial instruments: Disciosures - Amendments regarding replacement
issues in the context of the IBOR reform (sffective 1 January 2021)
Financial [nstrumants - Amendments resulting from replacement issues
in the context of the IBOR reform (effective 1 January 2021)

Financial Instruments - Amendments resulting  from  Annual
Improvements io IFRS Stendards 2018-2020 (fees in the ‘10 per cent'
test for derecognition of financial liabilities) (effective 1 January 2022)

The Fund enticipates thaf these amendments will be applied wherze applicabie in the
financial staiements at the abave effective dates in future petiods. No potential impact
is expected upon application of these amendmenis.

ACCOUNTING PCLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRS") as issued by the |nternational Accounting Standards Board

(IASB").

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial
assefs at fair value through other comprehensive income, which are measured at iair value.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{2} Foreign currency translation

The financlal statements are presented in MUR (presentation currency) which is also the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund operates {functional
currency). The Fund determines its own funciiona currency and items includad in the
financial statements of the Fund are measured using that functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 12,

3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(2)

(b}

Foreign currency transiation
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are inltially recorded by the Fund at their respective
functional currency spot rates prevailing af the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominaied in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency spot rate of exchange rufing at the reporting date. All differences
arising on setilement or ratransiation of monetary items are taken to profit or ioss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
trenslated wsing the exchange rates 23 at the daies of the initizl transaciions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value In a forsign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

The gain or loss arising on retranslzation of non-monetary items is treated in line with the
recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.. translation differences
on items whose fzir value gain or less is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profii or loss is aiso recognised in other comprshensive income or profit or foss,
respectively).

Taxes
Current incame fax

Current income tax assets and lizbiliies are meassured =t the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enscted or subsiantively enzcted, by the reporting
date.

Current income tax relating to ems recognised directly in eguity is recognised in equity
and net in profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax Is provided using the fiability method on temporary differsnces between the
tex bases of zsseis and liabiliies and their carrying amounis for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for zil taxable temporary differences, except:

»  Where the deferred tax liability arises from the injtial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in & transaction that is not 2 business combination and, af the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

= In respect of laxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, wherz the fiming of the
reversal of the {emporary differences can be controlied and ¥ is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
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3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(b} Taxes (Continued)

(e

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax asssis are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
lemporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credils and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except;

s Where the deferred tex asset relating 1o the deductible temperary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or iability in a iransaction that is not 2 business
combination and, at the time of the {ransaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with invesimants in
subsidiaries, associztes and interests in joint ventures, deferred iax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences wil
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
{emporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred {ax assels is reviewad at each reporting date and reduced
o the extent that it is no ionger probable that sufficient taxable orofit wili be available to
aliow zll or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred 1ax asssals
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to ihe exient thai it has bacome
probable that future taxable profits will allow the daferred tax asset to be recoversd,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o zpply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based an tax rates {and tax
taws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or less. Deferred {ax items are recognised in correlation o the underlying fransaction either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lizbilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tex assets agzainst current income tax liabilities and the deferred
iaxes relate {0 the same taxable enfity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of 2 business combination, but not satisiying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, would be recognised subsequently if new information
about facls and circumsiances changed. The adjustment would either be treated as o
reduction to goodwill {as long as it does not exceed gooawill) if it incurred during the
measurement period or in profit or loss,

Financial instruments

IFRS 8 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
izbilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.This standard replaces IAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
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3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c}

Financial instruments {Continued)

As 2 resuli of the adoption of IFRS 8, the Fund has adopled consequential amendments to
1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, which require:

«  Impairment of financiai asseis fo be presented in & seperate fine item in the statement
of comprehensive income; and

= Seperate presentation in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method,

Financial essets
initial recognition and measurement

Financial assels are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amoriised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCH, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Fund's business model for managing them.
The Fund initially measuras a financial asset &t its fair veluz plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and mzasured at amortised cost or fair value
through OCI, it naeds 1o give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely paymenis of principal and
intarest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred o0 23 the
8PP iest and is performed at an instrument lavel.

The Fund's businass madel for managing financial sssets refers fo how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model datermines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractcal cash flows, sedling the financial assets, or
beth,

Managemant has made an assessment on the basis of the facts and circumsiances that
existed at the date of initial application tc determine whether to classify the debt
instruments held a! amortised cost or financial assets at fair value through QGCL The
determination of the business moda! within which a financia) asset is hald at amorised
cost needs to meet the objective which is o hold financial asseis in order to collect
contraciual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Purchases or sales of financial 2ssets that reguire delivery of asseis within a fime frams

trade date for equiy instruments, i.e., the date that the Fund commiits o purchase or
sell the asset;

setilement date for debt instruments, ie., the date that the Fund settles the purchase
or szle of the asset.



SBM YIELD FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 15.

3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assels {continued)

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subseguent measurement. financizl ssseis are classified in four
ratennrise:

L

o

Y]

{in)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assels at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulstive gains and
lesses {dabt instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OC! with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

Financial assets i fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost

The Fund measures financial assets at amoriised cost if both of the foliowing
conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order 1o collect contraciual cash flows: or

The contraciual terms of the financial assat give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequantly measured using the effective
interest rate {EIR) method and ars subject o impeirment. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognissd, modified or impairzd.

The Fund's financizl assets 2t amortised cost include cash and cash equivalents and
investments in Inflation- indexed Government bonds and unquoted bonds.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCH {equity instruments)

Upen initial recognition, the Fund can elect io classify irrevocably its equity
invesiments as equily instrumenis designated at fair value through OCl when they
meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial instruments; Preseniation and are
not held for rading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by instrument

Gains and losses on these financial asseis are never recycled {o profit or loss,
Diidends are recognised as income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been esfablished, excapt when the Fund benefits from such proceeds
as & recovery of part of the cost of the financial assat, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated &t fair value through OCI zre not
subject to impaiment assessment.

The Fund elected to classify irrevocably its listed 2nd non listed equity and debt
investrments under this category.
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3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)

fc)

Financial instruments {Continued)
Financial assets (continued}
Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, & part of a financial asset or part of a Fund of similar
finzncial assets) is primarily derscognised (i.e., removed from the Fund's statement of
financizl position) when:

+ The rights {0 receive cash flows from ihe asset have expired; or

+  The Fund has transferred ils rights o receive cash fiows from ths asset or has assumed
an obligation o pay the received cash flows in full without materiel delay to & third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangsmeni and either (3) the Fund has transferred
substentially ell the risks and rewards of the essei, or (b) the Fund has nelther
transferred nor refzined substentizlly all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred conirol of the asset.

When the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from 2n asset or has entered
inte 2 pass through arrangement, it evaluzsies if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks
and rawards of ownership. When it has neither iransfarred nor ratained substantially 2ll of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred coniral of the zssel, the Fund continuss to
recognise the transferred asset to the exient of ifs continuing invalvement.

in that case, the Furd zlso recognises an essoclated liability. The fransferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on 2 basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Fund has retzined.

Continuing involvament that takes the form of a guarantee over the ransferred esset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the assat and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Fund could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Fund recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets messured at amerised
cost and FVDCI.

The Fund measures loss allowances a: 2n amount equa! to lifetime ECLs, excapt for the
following, which are, measured at 12-months ECLs:

¢ financial 2ssets that are determined o have low credit risk af the reporing daie; and
«  ofner financial essals for which credit risk {i.e the risk of default occurring over ihe
expected life of the asset) has not increased significanty since initial recognition.

When determining whather the credit risk of a finzncial asset has increased significantly
sincz initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Fund considers rezsonable and
supporiable information that is refevant and avaitable without undue cost or efforf, This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Fundse

historical experlence and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{e)

Financial instruments {Continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (cantinued)

The Fund assumes that the credit risk on & financial asset has increasad significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Fund considers a financizl 2sset to be in default when ths fnancial assets is more than
30 days past due.

The Fund considers a financizl asset to have low cradit risk when the cradit rating of the
counterpany is equivzlent fo the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’. The
Fund considers this to be Bza3 for Moody's raiing or BB8- &s per Standard and Poor's
rating. (See Note 15.5),

Litetime EGLs are the ECLs thai result Fom all possible default svenis over the exoected iz
of 2 financial instrumant.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from the defeult events that are possibie
within the 12 months after the reporing date {or shorter period if the expected lifz of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considersd when estimating the ECLs is the maximum contractus!
period over which the Fund is exposed to credit risk,

Measurement of EClLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimaie of credit losses. Credit lossss are measured as the
present valuz of all cash shortfalls (i.e the diffierence beiween the cash flows due to the antity
in agcordance with the contract and cash flows that the Fund expacls to receive)

Credit-impaired financial assets

t each reporiing date, the Fund is required to assess whethar financial assets carried st
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘creditsimpaired’ when one or more
evenis thel have a detnmental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have opoourrad.

Evidence that & financial 2sset is creditimpaired ingludes the following observable data:

e Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer
= Abreach of contract such as default or baing more than 30 days past dug; of
»  ltis probabie that the borrewer will enier bankruptey or other financis] regrganisation.

Presentation of allowances for ECLS in the statement of financiai position

Presentation of allewances for financial assets measured at amoriised cost is deducted from
the gross carrying amoun: of assets.

White-oif policy

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows. Financial assets written off may siill be subject 10 enforcement

aciivilies under the Fund's recovery procedures. Any recoveries made are recognised in
rofit or loss.
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3.2 SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{c)

Financial instruments {Continued}

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Firancial izbilities comprise of other payables, which are measured at emortised cost.
Subsequent measurement

The measuremznt of financiz| lizbiiities depends on their classification, as described below:
Other pevebies

Accounts payable ere stated 2t their amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Effaclive interest mathod

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of 2 financial
lizbiity anc of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effzctive interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fuiure cash payments (including ail fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the interest rate. Yransaction costs and
other premium or discounts) through the expected life of the financial Hability, or {where
appropriate} 2 shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recogniticn.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognisad when the obligation under the tiabifity is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing finangia} ligbility is replaced by another from the same
lencer on substentally differant terms, or the terms of an axisting #ability are substantiaily
modified, such an gxchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new tiability. The difference in the respactive carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial lizbiliies are ofiser and the net amount is reported in the
siatement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right fo offset the
recognised amounts and thare is an intention to settle on a nat basis, to realise the assets
and setile the Habiiities simulianeously.

Determination of fair value
All assets and lizbilifies for which fair valus is mesasured or disclosed in the financial

stafements are categorised within the fair valus hierarchy, describad as follows, based on the
fowes: level input that is significant to the fair value mezsurement 25 a whole:
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3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{e)

()

{e}

{f)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Determination of {air value {continued)

o Level 1 - Quoted {unadiusied) market prices in active markets for identical assals or
liabilities

° Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest evel input that is significant i¢ the
fair vaiue measurement is directly or indiractly observable

s Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which tha lowast leve! input thet is significant iv the
fair value measuremant is unobsarvable

For assets and lizhifities that are recognised in the financial statements on 2 racurring basis,
the Fund determines whether transfers have occurred between lavels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing the categorisation{based on the lowsst level input that is significant to the fair
vaiue measurement as & whole) at the beginning of each reporiing period.

Revenue recognition under IFRS 9
{1} Interest income caiculated using effective interast method

Interest revenue and expensa are recognised in the statement of other comprenansive
income for all interest-bearing financial instruments using the sfiective interest method.

() Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Fund's fight to receive the payment is
established.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at
bank.

Related parties

Partes are considered to bs related to the Fund if they have the ability, diractly or indirectly,
fo control the Fund or exercise significant influence over the Fund. Related parties may be
individuals or ofher entities.

Redeemable units
Classification of reteemnabie units
Redsemabie units are classified as equity instruments when:

- The redeemable units entitle the holder 1o a pro rata shars of the Fund's nat assets in
the event of ihe Fund's fisuidation.

- The redeemable units are in the clzss of instrumenits that is subordinate to all ather
classes of instruments,
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3.2 SUNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
(g} Redeemable units (Continued)

- All redesmable units in the class of instruments hat is subordinate 1o 2ll other classes
of instrumeants have identica! fesiures.

- the redzemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another inancial asset other than the holder's rights to a pro rata share of the Fund's
net assets.

- The total expscted cash fows attributable 1o the redesmabie units over the life of the
mstrument ars based subsiantially on the profit or loss, the changs in the recognised nst
assels or the change in the fair valus of the recognised and unrecognised net assats of
he Fund over the life of the instrument.

In addiiion to the redeemsble units having ell the above features. ihe Fund must have no
other financial instrument or contract that has:

- Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss. the change in ihe recognised
net asssts or the changz in the fair value of the recognised and uarecognised nat assets
of the Fund; and

- The effect of substantially resticting or fixing the residuzl retum o the hoiders of
redeamable units.

The Fund continuously assesses the classification of the redesmable uniis, ¥ the
redeemeble units cease 1o have zll the features or meet all tha conditions set out to be
ciassified as equity, the Fund will reclassify them as financial liabilities and measure them at
fair value at the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previous carying
amount recognised in equity. I the redeemable units subsequently have all the features and
meel the conditions to be classified 2s equity, the Fund will reclassify them as equity
instruments and measure them at the carrving amount of the lisbilities at the date of the
reclassification.

The Issuznce, acyuisition and cancellation of radeemable units are accounied for as squily
wransactions. Upon issuance of sharss, the consideration recaivad is included in 2quity.

4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Fund's financial statements requires management {0 make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affzct the reporied amounts of revenuss, expenses, assets and
liabifities, and the disclosure of contingent lisbifites. Uncariainties about these assumptions and
estimates could resuit in ouicomes that require 2 material adjustment o the carrying amount of the
assst or liability affectad in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Fund's accounting policies, manzagement has made the iollowing
ludgement, which has the most significant =¥ect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Judgements {Continued)
Determination of functional currency

The primary objective of the Fund is fo generate retums in MUR, s capital-raising currency. The
liguidity of the Fund is managad on a day-fo-day basis in MUR. The Fund's performance is
evaiuated in MUR. Therefore manzgement considers MUR z2s the currency that most faithfully
represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions. evenis and conditions.

Going concern

The Manager of the Fund has made zn assessment of its ability to tontinue as a going concern
and is satisfied that the Fund has the resources 1o continue in business for the foreseeable future.

Furthermore, the Manzger is not aware of any material uncerainty that may cast significant doubt
upon the Fund's ability 10 continue ss & going concern. Thersfore, the financial statements
continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Business model assumption

Ciassification and measurement of financial zssets depends or the resulls of the SPP] and the
business model test (se2 financial assets sections of note 3). The Fund determines the business
model 2t & leval that reffects how groups of financial assets are menaged {ogether o achizsve 2
particuiar business objective. This assessmant includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence
intiuding how the performance of the asssis is svaluated and their periermance measured, the
risks that aifect the perdormance of the assets and how these are managed and how the
managers of the assels arg compensated, The Fund monitors financial assels measured at
amorised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that ars derecognised prior to
their meturity to undarstand ihe reason for their disposal and whether the reasons ara consistent
with the objsctive of the business for which the asset was hald. Monitoring is part of the Fund's
continuous assessmant of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assats
are held continuss to be appropriste 2nd iF #t is not appropriate whether there has been 2 change
in business mogdel and so = prospective change o the classification of those assais,

During the year, there was 2 change in business modet of the Sund whereby management has
decidad to trade actively on fixed income securities, previously categorisad under Hold ‘o collect
appreach, as from October 2020 given thet a secondary market s now available for these
sacurities. As a result, all government bonds previously held under amortised cost have new besn
reclessified fo financial assets at FVPL,

Estimates

The key assumptiens concerning the future 2nd other key sources of estimation unceriainty at the
reporting daie, that have a significant risk of causing 2 material adjournmant 10 the carying
amounts of esssts and labilities within the next finzncial year, are discussed bezlow. The Fund
based its zssumptions and astimates on parameters available when the financial statemenis were
prepared. However exisiing circumstances and essumptlions zbout fuiure davelopments may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Fund, Such
changss are affected in the assumptions when they occur.
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4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Estimates (continued)
Expecled credit losses (ECLSs)

To calculate the ECL, the Fund has applied judgements that have a significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements and include the classification of financial
instruments into financial assets measured at amortised cost category. Estimated ratings have
heen usad for the calculation [See Note 15,51

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

As a result of the ability to issue, repurchase and resell units, the capital of the Fund can vary
depending on the demand for redemption and subscriptions to the Fund. The Fund is not subject
to externally imposed capital requirements and has no legal restrictions on the issue, repurchase
or resale of redeemable units beyond those included in the Fund's prospectus.

The investment objective of the Fund is to achisve atiractive risk-returns through a combination of
lang-term capital appreciation and current income by making porifolio investments.

The Fund’s objectives for managing capital are;
- To invest the capital in investments, meeting the description, risk, exposure and expscizd
refurn indicated in its prospacius.

- To meaintain sufficient liguidity o meet the expenses of the Fund, and io meet redemption
reqguests as they zrise.

- To maintain sufficiznt size to make the operation of the Fund cost efficient.

The capital of the Func consists of units denominated in Mauritian Rupess and is redeemabls at
the option of the unit holder based on net ssset value. The redesmable participating units have
been classified as equity.

{a) Movement in units during the year

2021 2020
No. of units MUR No. of units MUR
Al start of year 18,125,940 187,250,921 16,335,958 189,085,422
Units created 4,747,638 54,854,523 2,451,093 27,039,868
Units liquidated (2,294,081) {25,727,048) (2.662,009) (28,844 3569)
At end of year 13,579,487 195,518,396 15,125,940 167,290,921
2024 2020
MUR MUR
{b) Netasset value per unit
Net assets atiributable to holders of redeemabie units 216,868,195 178,998,568
Net assets per redeemable units (MUR) 11.67 11.10
{(c} Prices per unit
issue price 11.73 11.18
Redemption price 41.84 11,04

Unitholders have the rights to receive an equal share of dividends and to a share pro-rata to their
number of units heid in the disiribution of tha surplus asseis of the Fund on winding up.
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8. THER RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
MUR MUR
Dividend receivabie 8,328 8,513
Prepayments 24,571 24,393
34,397 33,908

The carrving value of the other receivables approximates its fair velus and is receivable within 3
months,

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

EQUITY DEBT TOTAL

MUR MUR MUR

At 01 July 2020 12,358,717 25,252,553 37,611,380
Reclassified from financial assets at amortised
cost - 2,996,713 2,096,713
Additions - 13,003,922 18,003,822
Disposals (1,066,667} . {1,066,667)
Interest accrued - 222,343 222,343
Expected credit loss (Note 10) - (27,785) {27,795}
Fair value gain 602,218 1,289,707 1,882,026
At 30 June 2021 11,884,368 48,737.583 80,631,822
At 01 July 2079 8,171,808 46,908,454 55,080,402
Addifions 5,998,501 - 5,886,501
Disposals (2,227,850) (22,701,282)  (24,628.902)
Interest accrued - 134,251 134,251
Expected credit loss (Note 10) - 54,286 54,256
Fair value gain 417,918 856,024 1,274,842
At 30 June 2020 12,358,717 25,252 663 37,611,380

(2} Equity at Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

FAIR VALUE

2027 2020

MUR MUR
New Mauritius Hotels 140,480 163,200
Ascenciz Lid 25,107 14,028
SBM Heldings Lid - 1,480,388
iShares Core US 8,701,450 8,328,592
iShares US Prefersnce Stock ETF US 2,027,292 1,674,510

11,894,369 12,358,717
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH QTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME {CONTINUED)

{b} Debt at Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

2021 2020

MUR MUR
SBM Maharaje Bond Fund 7,539,761 6.6872,837
SBM USD Note 1,998,226 1,802,206
MCB Group Lid Notes 2,474,945 2.415,270
SBM MUR Note 7,033,887 3,899,981
IBL Lid Nofes 10,337,737 10,362,369
CIM Financial Services Lid Notes 9,148,754 -
Alpha Capital Protecied Note 3,160,176 -
Forty Two Point Two 7,042,268 -

48,737,553 25,252,683

{c) Financial assets measured 2t fair value through OCI are {further anaiysed as follows:

2021 2020
MUR MUR

Non-current 50,631,822 37.611,380
Curreni -

60,631,822 37,611,380

8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021

MUR
At 07 July -
Reclassified from financial 2ssets 2t amortised cost 94,450,054
Additions 17,828,920
Disposals (10,233,380)
Interest acerued 76,082
Falr value gain 11,225,274
Al 30 Juns 113,346,460

During the year, thera was 2 changs in business model to reflect the changs in invesimant strategy
and more active trading in Government of Mauritius securities. As a result, all government bonds
previcusly held under amortised cost have besn reciassified to financial assets at FVTPL.
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8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)
{2) Financizal assets at FVTPL ¢an be analysed as follows:
2021
MUR
5.08%{5YGOMBD220433_MUOGBDADSE71 6,425,685
5.85% 15 YR GOM BOND ¢/11/32_MUOGBDAD7479 7,863,944
5.85%20YGOMBN08.02.203¢_MUOGBDADTS0S 20,311,311
5.08%20YFOMBO70938_MUDGBDAL7198 12,597,125
8.18%20YGOMB110538_MUOGBDADB240 11,510,437
MAURCN 1.8% 08/07/2023_MUDBNTA12331 4,996,115
MAURGE 5.42 03/09/28_MUDGRDAD5811 3,366,412
MAURGB 6.50% 22/07/36_MUOGRBDAO30S8 9,718,548
MAURGE 7% 15/01/26_MUDGEDAD2157 5,882,607
MAURGHE 7.4 01/25/28_MUOGBDADBS04 17,849,107
MAUTN 0.72% 12/08/2022_MUDGNTA12173 12,814,171
113,346,460
(b} Financial assets at FVTPL are further analysed as foliows:
2021
MUR
Non-current 100,432,289
Current 12,814,174
113,346,460
9. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT AMORTISED COST
2021 2020
MUR MUR
At 01 Juiy 118,428,765 120,537,338
Reclzssified to financial assets at FVTPL (94,450,054} -
Reclassified io financial zsseis at FVOC! (2,598,713} -
Additions 10,000,000 3,000,000
Maturity of debis - (5,000,000)
Inierest amortised 1,333 (118,083}
Expected credit losses (Note 10) 35,898 26,090
Unrealised Joss - (15,500)
At 30 June 31,020,229 118,429,765
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8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT AMORTISED COST (CONTINUED)

{a) The breakdown of financial assets held at amortised cost is as follows:
2021 Interest rate Maturity MUR
Government bonds 6.28% -7.47%  Jul 22- Apr33 10,150,031
Term deposits with other finansial 5% - 5.6% Apr 25 - Jun 30 5,767,623

{b}

(c)

instifufions
Other local bands

2020

Government bonds

Tearm depasits with other financial
institutions

Other lozal bonds

Financial assets held at amortised cost are further znalysed as follows:

Non-current
Current

4.15% - 4.98%

interest rate

Feb 25 - Jun 31

18,102,575
31,020,228

3.94% « 7.47%
5% -58%
4.3% -4.88%

Maturity MUR
Dec 22 -Feb 39 104,544,840
Apr25 - Jun 30 5,764,952
Nov 22 - Feb 25 8,118,873
118,429,785

2021 2020

MUR MUR
31,020,229 118,428,765
31,020,229 118,429,765

Details of financial assets held at amoriised cost classified under term deposits with
other financial institutions and other local bonds are as foliows:

Government bonds

Term deposits with other financial institutions

ABC Banking Corporation Ltd Notes
Bank One Limited Notes

Other local bonds

Ciel Note

Ascencia Lid

Gamma Civic

Alphza Capitel Protected Note - Saries 1

2021 2020
MUR MUR
10,150,031 104,544,340
2,764,734 2,765,574
3,002,889 2,889,378
5,767,623 5,764,852
5,115,123 5,123,260
4,987,768 -
4,299,684 -
- 2,906,713
15,102,575 8,119,973
31,020,229 118,429,785
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0. ALLOWANCE FOR EXPECTED CTREDIT LOSSES {ECLs)
ECL on ECLon
FVOCE Amoriised TOTAL
MUR MUR MUR
At 01 Jul 2020 92,602 363,283 455,885
Reclassification 18,763 {19,763 -
Movament during the vear 27,785 {35,898) {8.103)
At 30 June 2021 140,180 307,822 447,782
At G1 Jul 2018 146,888 388,373 536,261
Movement during the year {54 288) {25,080) {80,376}
t 30 June 2020 92,802 363,283 455,885

The financial esseis are classified under Stage 1 (2020: Stage 1).

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY

Fair value of the Fund's local and foreign investments that are measured at fair vaiue on 2
recurring basis

IFRS 13 requires disclosures refating to fair value measuremerit using a three level fair value
higrarchy. The level within which the fair value measurement is categorised In its eniirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level of inptt that is significant to the fair value measuremant,
Assassing the significance of a particular input requires judgement, considering factors spscific fo
the asset or lizbility.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assais or liabilities.

Level 2 fair vaiue measurements zre those derived from inputs other than guoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither direclly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.&. derived irom prices).

Level 3 {air value measuremerits are those derived from valuation tschniques that include inputs for
the asseti or liability that are niot based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

The following table provides an analysis of local and foreign investments grouped into fevel 1 and 2
based on the degree o which the fair value is cbservabie.

Level Level 2 Level 3 Total
2021 MUR MUR MUR MUR
Financizl assets at FVOLCI
Eguity investments 11,884,389 - - 11,894,369
Debf investmeants 38,037,616 7,539,761 3,160,176 48,737,553
Financial assets at FVIPL
Debt investrnents - 113,346,460 - 113,348,460

At 30 June 2021 49,931,885 120,886,221 3,160,176 173,978,382
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11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2020 MUR MUR MUR MUR
Financie! assets st FVOCI
Equity investments 12,338,717 - - 12,358,717
Debt investments 18,579,825 6,672,837 - 25,252,663
At 30 June 2020 30,938,543 8,672,837 - 37,611,380

Following the change in business modal for fixad income securities, government bonds have been
classified under Level 2 for the yaar ended 30 June 2021.

The change in Level 3 hierarchy of MUR 3,160,176 {2020: MUR ni}) represents only addition in
Alpha Capital Protected Note during the year.

There has been no fransfer between isvels during the financial year.

Concentration of equitv price risk

The equity invesimanis are further analysed as follows:

Locsl

Banks, insurance ang other
financa sector

Leisure and hotels sector
QOthers

Foreign
Financial Sector

12. OTHER PAYARLES

Manager's fees
Trustee's fees
Audilor's fees
Administrator's fees
Registry fees
Custodian fess
Entry and exit fees
Tax advisor faes
Professional faes
Unclaimed dividends

2021 2020 2024 2020
MUR MUR % %
. 1,180,388 . 87
140,480 163,200 85 12
25,107 14,027 15 1
155,587 1,357,616 100 100
11,728,782 11,001,101 100 100
11,894,369 12,358,717
2021 2020
MUR MUR
154,801 118,077
55,568 55,237
126,500 123,625
27,336 20,837
18,224 12,891
10,198 8,032
5,595 1,337
20,700 28,900
8,525 15,003
152,801 122,107
580,447 518,137

The carrying amount of other payables approximate their fair value.

Other payables are unisecured, interest free and repayable within 3 months,
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13, TAXATION

income tax is calculated at the rate of 15% on profit for the year as adjusted for income iax
ourposes (2020: 16%).

{2

(b}

fncome tax liability

At 01 July

Chearge for the year

Tax paid during the vear

Under / (Qver) provision in previous year

At 30 June

Reconciliation of tax charge

Accounting profit

Tex on accounting profit at the fax rate of 15%
Tax effact of:

Exempt income

Non taxable income

Non-deductible expenses

Under / {Over) provision In previous year

Tax expense / (Income)

Tax charge for the year
Under / {Over) provision in previous year

Tax expense / {Income)

14. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

2021 2020
MUR MUR
30,760 496,471
283,505 224,191
(42,185) (430,575)
11,425 (259,327)
283,605 30,760
2021 2020
MUR MUR
16,901,294 5.246.,388
2,535,104 938,958
{1,031,033) -
{1,572,318) (994,778)
361,762 282,071
11,425 (259,327)
305,030 (35,136)
293,605 224,191
11,425 (259,327)
305,030 (35,138)

During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, the Fund transacted with related entities. Details of

the nature, volume of fransactions and balances with the entities are shown below.

Balances with reiated pariies

Fund expenses

2021 2020 2021 2020
MUR MLUR MUR MUR
88 Mauritius Assel Managers Lid
Manager fees payabls 154,901 118,077
Manager fees 1,820,438 1,418,652
Entry and Exit fzes 10,196
payable 8,032
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14. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

SBM Fund Seqvices Lid
Administrator fees
payable
Administrator fees
Registry fees payable
Registry fees

D708 Trusiees Lid
Trusize fees payable
Trustee fees

SBM Bank (Mauritius) Lid
Custodian fzes payable
Custodian fees
Balances held with Bank
Bank charges

S8M Holgings Lic
Investments in uitimate
holding company
Dividend income
interest Income

SBM Mzharaiz Bond Fund
Investment in other
rzfated parties

No sompensztion was paid to key management personnel during the year {2020: NI).

Balances with related parties
2021 2020

Fund expenses

2021

2020

MUR MUR

27,336 20,837

18,224 13.891

55,568 65,237

10,188 8,032

42,740,238

9,032,913 8,982,578

7,538,761 6572837

33,472,414

MUR

321,254

214,170

224,251

128,237

4,588

331,428

MUR

250,352

168,804

148,848

168,023

3,914

61,062
318,251

Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured, interest free and setflement occurs in cash,
There have been no guaranises providad or received for any related parly receivable or payable.

FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Rigk is inherent in the Fund's activities and is managed through 2 process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring subject to risk limits and other controls put in place &t the investment
manager company level. The Fund is exposed to market risk{which includes currency risk, interest
rete risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instrumenis # holds.
The Fund has investment guidefines that set out its overall business strategies and its folerance for

risk.
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15, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
15.1 Categories of financial instruments 2021 2020
MUR MUR
Financial agsels
Cash and cash equivalents at amortised cost 12,710,238 23472414
Ciher receivables at amortised cost 9,825 8,513
Financial assets at fair value through OCI 80,631,922 37,611,380
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 113,346,450 -
Financial assats at amortised cost 31,020,229 118,428,765

217,718,677 178,523,072

Financial lisbilities
Other payables at amortised cost 580,447 518,137

15.2 Significant accounting policies

Detalls of the significant sccounting poficies and methods adopted {including the criteria for
recognition, the bases of measurement, and fhe bases jor recognition of income and
sxpenses), for each class of financial asset, financial lizbility and eguily as provided in Note 3,

15.3 Risk management

The Fund's credit risk is managed bty the Invasiment manager subject to the Fund's
establishad policy, procedures and controls. The credit exposure is monitored by the
investment team and reported 1o the Fund's board angd Investment Committes on a quarterly
basis. There are internal limits with respect to single issuer exposure, maximum sector
exposure end the Fund will hold a diversified portiolic of securities in mitigating overall portfalio
credit risk. Investment-grade securities are mostly targeted in managing credit risk but credit
rigration is monitored.

15.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss resulting from adverse movemant in market rates or prices such
s interest rates, foreign exchange rates and aquity prices.

Foreign currency risk

The Fund invests in securities, including maintenance of cash that zre denominated in such
currendies other than in Mauritian Rupee ("MUR"). Acgordingly, the value of the Fund's assets
may be affected favourably or unfavourzhly by fluctuations in currency rates. Therefore, the
Fund will necessarily bs subjact to foreign exchange risk.

Tne currency profile of the Fund's financial assets and liabilities is summarised as follows:

Financial assets Financial Liablities
2021 2020 2021 2020
MUR MUR MUR MUR
United States Dollar 21,812,380 18,726,927 - -
Euro 22,726 20,1185 - -
Mauritian Rupee 185,883,560 158,776,030 580,447 518,137

217,718,877 178,523,072 580,447 518,137
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15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTIMUED)
15.4 Miarket risk (Continued)

The following tabie demonsirates the sensitivity o a reasonably possible change in the
exchange rats, with all other variabies held constant, on the Fund's proiit before tax znd

equity:
Increase / decrease Effect on profit before tax
percenfage and equity
2021 20290 2021 2020
MUR MUR
United States Dollar 10% 10% (2,181,239) (1.872,693)
~10% -10% 2,181,238 1,872,683
Euro 10% 10% (2,273} {2,011
~10% -10% 2.273 2,011

Equity and Bond price risk

The Fund is exposed to the risk that the value of its invesiment securities will fluctuate 2¢ =
result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors speciiic o
the individual security or factors affscting ail securities traded in the market. Market risk is
managed through diversification of the investment porifolic.

Price sensitivity anzlysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based con the exposure 1o equity and bond price
risks at the reporting date and assesses the impact of a 5% change in the price of local and
foreign investment.

Change
in price 2021 2020
% MUR MUR
Profit bafore tax +5 8,698,918 1,880,569
A fall in equity and bond prices by 5% would have resulted in an equal but opposite impact on
net assets.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates wili affect future
cash flows or the fair value of financial instruments.
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15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

15.4 piarket risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continuead)

At the reporiing date, the interest rate profile of the Fund's imerest bearing financial
instruments was:

2021 2020
Variable rafe asset MUR MUR
Finzncial assets 2t fair valus through other comprehensive 12,580,378 9,088,108
Financial asseis at amortised cost 20,137,482 10,151,107
Balance with bank 12,710,238 23,472,414

45,388,102 42,711,626

Fixed raie assels

Financial assets at fak value through other comprehensive 36,187,174 16,164,557
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 113,346,450 -
Financial assets at amortised cost 10,882,747 108,278.658

160,416,380 124.443.215

The Fund is axposed to interest rate risk on its variable rate assels.

Interest rate sensitivity analvsis

The sensitivity analysis below assesses ihe impact of & change in interest rate over a 12-
monih period. I the interest rate had been 2% higher:

in
interest
rate by 2021 2020
% MUR MUR
Effect on profit before tax +2 507,962 854,233

A decrease in interest rate by 2% would have resulted in an egual but opposite impact en
profit before tax and net assets,

15.5 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a iinancial loss
for the Company by failing to discharge an obligation. The Fund is exposed to the risk of
credit-related losses that can occur 2s a result of & counierparty or issuer being unable or
unwiling to honour its contractual obligations. These credit exposures exist within debt
instruments, short-term trade receivables, and cash and cash aguivalents,
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15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.5 Credit risk {continuad)

The Invesirment Manager's policy is to closely monitor the creditworthiness of the fund's
counterparties by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and press releases on a
regular basis.

Credit risk disclosures are segmented into two sections based on whether the underlying
financial instrument is subject to IFRS 9's impairment disclosures or not.

tmpairment on cash and cash squivalents has been measured on a 12-month expecied loss
besis and reflects the short maturities of exposures, The Fund considers that these exposuras
have low credit risk based on the external credit rating of the counterparties. The Fund has
assessed that ECL on cash and cash equivalents is not considered to be material.

Financial assets subject to IFRS s impaiment

The Fund's financial assets subject to the expecied credit loss mode! within IFRS 9 are
financizl assets at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through other
comprenensive incoms.

AL 30 June 2021, the total financial assets at zmoriised cost was MUR 43,730,968 on which
2 loss allowance of MUR 307,622 had been provided (2020: Financial assets at amortised
cost was MUR 141,802,179 on which a foss allowance of MUR 363,253 was provided},

The fotal financial assets through other comprehensive income (debt instruments) was MUR
48,737,553 on which a loss aliowance of MUR 140,180 had been provided (2020: Financial

assets at FVOCI was MUR 25,252,663 on which a loss allowance of MUR 92,602 was
provided).

There is not considered to be any concentration of credit risk within these assets. No assets
are considered impaired and no amounts have been written o in the period.

Probabilities of default have been used to calcufate the loss allowance. The 12-month and
Hfetims probabilities are based on historical data supplied by Moody or Standard and Poor jor
each credit rating and are recalibrated based on current market prices. Loss given defauit
parametlers generaily reflect an assumed recovery rate of 55%. However, if the assets were
credit-impairad, the estimate loss would be based on 2 specific assessment of expecied cash
shorifalls and on the originat effective interest rate.



SBM YIELD FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 35.
18, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
15.5 Credit risk (Continued)
The loss on financial assets is datailed as foliows;
2021 Rating PD_1 LGD_1 MUR
Financial assets at FYOC!
Term deposits with financial 0.0043 - o R0
institutions AA--Ba2  gposy  41%-45% 53,051
Other local bonds AAA - 0.0043 - or _ a4t
Unrated 0.0137 3T% - 41% 87,088
140,180
Financial assets gt amortised
cost
Government Bonds Baaz 0.0013 45% 6,072
Term deposits with other At -Unrated 0.0006 - 45%
financial institutions 0.1948 266,443
Other local bonds AA--A+  0.0043 - 379,
0.0072 ¢ 38,107
307,622
Total 447,782
2020 Rating PD_1 LGD_1 MUR
Financial agsets af FVQC!
Term deposits with other financial 0.0028 - o
institutions Bael-Bal 0o 45% 24,712
Other jocal bongs Unrated 0.0158 41% 87,890
892,602
Financial asseis at amoriised cost
Governmant Bonds Baai 0.6013 45% 62,541
Term deposits with other financizl -
institutions Unrated 0.1848 4584 267.165
0.0065 - P -
Other local bonds A - Unrated 0.0159 41% 33,577
__ 353283
Total

455,885




SBM YIELD FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 38,

15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
15.5 Credit risk (Continued)
Financigl essets not subject to IFRS &'s impairment requirements

The Fund is not exposed to ¢redit risk on its equity instruments measured at FVTPL and
FVOCI and its debt instruments measured at FVTPL, These classes of financial assets ars
not subject o IFRS 9's requirements. The carrying amount of these assats {amounting fo
MUR 125,240,828} undear IFRS 2 represenis the Fund's meximum exposure o credit risk
on financial instruments not subject to IFRS 9 impairment requirements under respective
reporting {2020: MUR 12,358,717).

15.6 Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will sncounter difficulty in meseting
chiigations associated with financial fizbilities that are settled by delivering cash or anather
financial asset. Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Fund
could be required io pay its lizbiifies or redeem its shares earlier than expected. The Fund
is exposed {o cash redemptions of its redeemable shares on & regular basis. Shares are
redeemable at the holder's option based on the Fund's NAV per share at the time of
redamption, calculated in accordance with the Fund's prospectus.

The Manager may fimit the total number of the units in the Fund thas may be redeemed on
any business day to 10% of thet outstending units in the Fund.

The Fund's policy is to satisfy redemption requesis by the following means (in decreasing
order of priority):

- Bearching for new investors

- Withdrawzl of cash deposits

- Disposal of highly liquid assets (i.e., shori-term, low-risk debt invesiments)
- Disposal of other assets

The Fund invests primarily in marketable securities and other financial instruments which,
under normal market conditions, are readily convertible to cash. In addition, the Fund's
policy is to mainiain sufficient cash and cash equivalenis to meel normal operating
requirements and expecied redemption requests.

Financial liabilities

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date, When = counterparty has & cheice of when the
amount is paid, the liability is allocated fo the earliest period in which the Fund can be
required to pay.

Financial assets

Analysis of equity and debt securities into maturity groupings is based on the expected
date on which these assets will be realised. For gther assets, the analysis into maturity
groupings is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporiing period to the

contractual maturity date or, if earlier, the expected date on which the assets will he
realisad.
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i8.

18.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.7 Liguidity risk (Continued)
Excessive risk concentration

Concentration indicates the relative sensitivity of the Fund's performaace io developments
affecting a particular industry or geographical jocation. Concentration of risks arises when
a number of financial instruments or contracis are entered into with the same counierparty
or when a number of counterparties are engagad in similar business activitiss, or activities
in the same geographical region, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to mesat contractual obligations to be similarly affected by chenges in economic
features that would cause iheir abiliy to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affscted by changes in economic political or other condiions. Concentrations of liguidity
risk may arise from repayment terms of financial lizbiliies. Concentrations of foreign
exchange risk may arise if the Fund has a significant net open position in a single foreign
currency. In order to avoid excessive concentration of risk, the Fund's policies and
procedures include specific guidelinas to focus on maintaining 2 diversified porifolic. The
investment manager is instructed to reduce exposure o excessive risk concentrations,

The Fund shall not invest more than 20% of its Net Asset Value in sscurisies issued by a
single Issuer (a company or other corporate entity including the subsidiaries thereof) at the
time of purchass.

The Fund shall not hold more than 20% of any class of security listed or unlisted, issued by
a singie issuer.

INCOME 2021 2020
MUR MUR
Interest income caleulated using effsctive interest method
Income on Government bong 5,365,388 5,744 500
Interast on deposits with financial institutions 1,027,095 399,072
Interest on other investments 1,023,702 1,684,868
8,416,186 7,838,438
Dividend income 175,444 236,502
Total 8,591,630 8,074,940
MAMAGER'S FEES

Manager's fees are computed daily based on 0.85% p.a of net asset value of fhe Fund
{2020:0.85% of NAV) and the fees are payable monthly in arrears,

TRUSTEE'S FEES

Trustee's fees are computed daily based on 0.085% p.a of net asset value of the Fund plus
VAT (2020:0.085% of NAV plus VAT) with & minimum of MUR 3.500 and maximum MUR 8,000
per month and the fees are payable monthly in arrears,
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20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

REGISTRY'S FEES

Registry's fees are computed daily based on 0.10% p.2 of net asset valus of the Fund
(2020:0.10% of NAV) and the fees are payable monthly in arrears.

ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

Administrator's fees are compuied daily based on 0.15% p.a of nei asset value of the Fund
(2020:0.15% of NAV) and the fees are payable monthly in 2rrears.

ENTRY FEE AND EXIT FEE

Entry fees of up to 0.50% (2020: up to 0.50%) cn the units subscrived are retained by the
Investment Manager to meet any administration costs in relation to subscription of units.

Exit fees of 0.5% of the Net Asset Value per unit will be applicable at the time of redempticn.
The redemption procesds will be reduced by the zmount of the exit fees and the net amount
paid to the Unitholder.

CUSTODIAN FEES

Custodian's fees are computed daily based on 0.06% p.a of investment value of the Fund
{2020: 0.06% p.= of investment value) plus transaciion charges of MUR 100 for each local trade
and EUR 20 for each foreign trade (2020: MUR 100 for each local trads and EUR 20 for each
toreign trade) and are payable monthly in arrears.

BISTRIBUTION TO UNITHOLDERS

As 2t 30 June 2021 distributions mads to unithelders were follows:
Distribution

Distribution per unit
MUR MUR
Year ended 30 June 2020 5,735,331 0.31
Quarter ended 30 Sept 2020 1,237,827 0,07
Quarter ended 31 December 2020 1,424,024 0.08
Quarter ended 31 March 2021 1,447,958 0.08
9,845,138

——
e

COVID 19 IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The global public health crisis, the Covid-18, led to the shutdown of the global economy and
prompted a global equity market collapse in March 2020, The global policy response to cushion
the coronavirus shock has been unpracedented in terms of speed and size as policymakers

supported the ecomomies by committing to keep rates low and enabling an increasingly
accommodative monetary as well 25 fiscal policies.
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COVID 19 IMPACT ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

The pandemic’'s near-term evolution, containment measures, vaccinations roll-out, easing of
restrictions and dovish stance from central banks contributed fo the positive market sentiment
and pushed equity markets to all-time highs by the end of financial year 2021. Although
unprecedented policy responses were required to cushion against the adverse impacts of the
Covid-19, monetary and fiscal stimuli along with supply-chain disruptions raised infiationary
pressures. Extended high inflation rates may impact the path of interest rates, and hence equity
and debt markets, but drastic policy changes are not expected in the near-term.

While markets have rebounded strongly in FY21, the potential impacts from further spread of
the virus despite the vaccination roll-outs are difficult to assess and may vary across countries,
markets and sectors. Any public health emergency, including any outbreak of Covid-19
mutations or other existing or new epidemic diseases, or the threat thereof, and the resulting
financial and economic market uncertainty could have a significant adverse impact on the Fund
including the fair value of its investmenis. External factors remain beyond the Investment
Manager’s control and cannot be forecasted but they have adverse impacts on the value of
investments.

With respect to SBM Yield Fund, its strategic allocation is 60% domestic fixed income and 40%
international fixed income. Bonds generally carry lower volatility compared to stocks and usually
include a conditicn to repay the original sum at a specified date in the future and normally
provide a fixed level of income. However, the capital value of a bond fund and the level of iis
income may still fluctuate. Investments in higher yielding bonds issued by borrowers with lower
credit ratings may result in a greater risk of default and have a negative impact on income and
capital value. Income payments may constitute a return of capital in whole or in part. The impact
of COVID-19 on investment value is outlined below:

- Domestic fixed income securities

Although Mauritius was downgraded by international agencies, the Investment Manager
does not expect significant impacts on the carrying value of GoM securities as no
sovereign default risk is currently anticipated. Most of the corporate bonds in the portfolio
are issued by entities listed on the Stock Exchange of Mauritius. The bonds are valued at
fair value and their market prices are expected to reflect the underlying risks. The main
risk in current context is the rise in yields which is likely to reduce the fair value of bond
prices but the Manager has views on the evolution of short- and long-term vields, and may
adjust the portfolio's duration through frades in managing such risks. Credit risks are
managed through limits on issuer, diversified portfolic and limited concentrations. The
underlying risks of the issuers are regularly monitored.

The Investment Manager does not expect significant impacts on the carrying value of term
deposits with stable banking and non-banking institutions. Nevertheless, those instruments
are valued using a hold-fo-collect approach under IFRS9 and provisions for expected
capital losses are based on issuer rating.
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25,

Foreign fixed income securities

Given the relatively small fund size and objective o achieving maximum diversification, the
Fund's foreign fixed income allocation involves mostly fixed income and fixed-income
related mutual funds and ETFs which are measured af fair value. Since the foreign
portfolio is mainly invested in international mutual funds and ETFs, the Manager does not
anticipate funding liquidity and asset liguidity risks in the current conditions. Any adverse
impact of Covid-19 is reflected in the market price of those securities. Adverse credit
events would likely result in a fall in prices but mitigated through those securities’
diversified portfolios. In addition to credit and interest rate risks from holding foreign fixed
income securities, there are potential losses from adverse movement of the MUR against
other currencies in which the Fund is invested. The MUR remained relatively weak during
the financial year and significantly depreciated towards the end of June 2021. As a result,
the carrying value of international investments increased. The Investment Manager seeks
to limit its exposure in exotic foreign currencies in managing FX risks

Overall, the Fund has not been impacted in terms of significant redemptions as there has been
more issue of units. The Investment Manager monitors closely the liguidity position of the Fund.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

There has been no other material events after the reporting date which would require disclosure
or adjustment to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.



